
 
 

                                                                                                           

  

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

   
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon 

  recognition by the Chair, approach the rostrum and state your name; 
  speakers are limited to 5 minutes per item. 
 
  2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the City of 

Alameda Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 
747-4325 (TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City of Alameda Housing Authority Board  

   of Commissioners to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 
 
   
 
AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE & TIME Wednesday, November 20, 2019 – 
 
  Closed Session – 6:00 p.m. 
  Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m.  
  Closed Session Continued – 7:01 p.m. (Additional Time If Needed) 
   
  
LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
   
Welcome to the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
meeting.  Regular Board of Commissioners meetings are held on the third Wednesday of each 
month in the Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room at Independence Plaza. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject is 
before the Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Housing Authority Executive Director if 
you wish to address the Board of Commissioners. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      November 20, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

3.  Closed Session – 6:00 p.m. – Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider: 
 
3-A.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Number 74-451-1-8; Authority 
Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  PUR Atlantic 
LLC; Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment. 

 
3-B.  Closed Session: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Number 74-1366-9; Authority 
Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  Pulte Group; 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment. 

 
3-C.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a) – Conference with 

legal counsel re existing litigation, Housing Authority of the City of Alameda v. Johnson, 
Alameda County Superior Court No. RG18933615. 

 
4.  Adjournment of Closed Session 
 
5.  RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 p.m. 
 
6.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 
7.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by 
one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received 
from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 
8-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held October 16, 2019 – Page 1 
8-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations/H.R./I.T. – Page 8 
8-C.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department – Page 12 
8-D.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Alameda Rent Program – Page 15 
8-E.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations – Page 17 
8-F.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development – Page 25 
8-G.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village – Page 27 
8-H.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing – Page 29 
8-I.  Accept the Holiday and Office Closure Schedule for 2020 – Page 32 
8-J.  Accept the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending September 30, 2019 – Page 35 
8-K.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for September 30, 2019 – Page 40 
8-L.  Accept an update on the Alameda City Council Referral from October 15, 2019 – Page 54 
8-M. Approve Clarification of Revised Payment Standard Decrease for the Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program and Payment Standard Increase for Project Based Vouchers 
Effective December 2, 2019 – Page 57 

 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      November 20, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

9.  AGENDA 
 
9-A. Authorize Staff to Prepare Documents to Transfer Housing Authority Owned Properties to 

Comply with HUD Requirements for Project-Based Voucher and Housing-Choice Voucher 
Contracts – Page 62 

 
9-B. Provide Direction to Staff for Development Opportunity at Alameda Landing – Page 64 
 
9-C. Report to the Board of Commissioners on the 2019 Compensation Study of Exempt 

Positions and Adopt the Corresponding Resolution to Adopt a Revised Pay Schedule – 
Page 73 

 
9-D. Accept the Resolution to Amend the Schedule of Authorized Positions – Page 80 
 
10.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
11.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
12.  CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION – IF NEEDED 
 
13.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 
14.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
* * * 

 
Note 

 
•    If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing Authority of 

the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-4325  (TTY/TRS: 
711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable 
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
• Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 

Office of the Housing Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business hours.  
 

• Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Commissioners exists 
to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the people 
and are open for the people’s review.  In order to assist the Housing Authority’s efforts to 
accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical 
sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other 
attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the Housing 
Authority accommodate these individuals. 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


 
 

                                                                                                           

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

HELD WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2019 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners Meeting began at 6:03 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  

 
Present:   Vice Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Grob, Commissioner Hadid, 

Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Rickard 
 
Absent:  Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
2.  Public Comment on Closed Session 
 
  None 
 
3.  Closed Session – 6:00 p.m. – Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider: 
 
3-A.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a) – Conference with 

legal counsel re existing litigation, Housing Authority of the City of Alameda v. Johnson, 
Alameda County Superior Court No. RG18933615. 

 
3-B.  Closed Session: Purpose:  Conference with legal counsel –anticipated litigation.  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b):  
one potential case. 

 
3-C. Closed Session: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Number 74-1366-9; Authority 
Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  Pulte Group; 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment. 

 
4.  Adjournment of Closed Session 
 
5.  RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING – 7:14 p.m. 
 
6.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 

Page 1

Page 1 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

Vice Chair Tamaoki stated that the Board gave direction to staff on agenda items 3-A 
and 3-C. The Board will reconvene the closed session to discuss agenda item 3-B at 
the end of the public meeting. 

 
7.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 

Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, spoke about earthquake concerns and a 
need for improvement in emergency lighting in the common areas of IP and in the 
restrooms. Mr. Neveln also commented on the US Flag being out at night without 
proper illumination. 

 
Ms. Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, gave an update on last month’s public 
comments and relayed the concerns of one member of the public who was not able to 
stay for the meeting including expanding the exit at the back of IP to allow for 
emergency vehicles, IP parking issues, and garbage cans. 

 
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 
by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 
  Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk. 
 

Vice Chair Tamaoki recused himself from voting on Item 8-A: Approve Minutes of the 
Board of Commissioners Meeting held September 18, 2019 since he did not attend the 
meeting. 
 
Commissioner Grob moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Hadid seconded 
the motion. All were in favor with one abstention on Item 8-A: 

 
Yes: 4 Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 

Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Abstained: 1 Vice Chair Tamaoki 
 

Absent: 2 Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 
 
*8-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held September 18, 2019 
*8-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations/H.R./I.T. 
*8-C. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department 
*8-D. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Program 
*8-E.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 
*8-F.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development 
*8-G. Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village 
*8-H. Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing 
*8-I.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for August 31, 2019 
*8-J.  Accept Report on Housing Authority Records Disposition 
*8-K.  Approve Out-of-State Travel for Asset Management Staff 

Page 2

Page 2 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

*8-L.  Approve Outside Employment of Executive Director, per 2014 Employment Contract 
Between the Board of Commissioners and Vanessa Cooper 

*8-M. Accept Board of Commissioners Meeting Schedule for 2020 
*8-N. Direct the Executive Director or Her Designee to Vote “Yes” on the City of Alameda’s 

Upcoming Stormwater Fee Ballot Measure 
 
9.  AGENDA 
 
9-A. Accept the Annual LifeSTEPS Presentation and Report 
 
 Ms. Belinda Lee, Bay Area Regional Director of Social Services, gave a presentation on 

LifeSTEPS services, what the program offers to participants, and answered questions. 
Ms. Cooper commented that neither LifeSTEPS nor AHA can mandate services to 
tenants, but make sure that services are offered. Chair Tamaoki commented that the 
most difficult decisions posed to the Board regarding lease violations caused by 
participants and asked how LifeSTEPS helps in these situations. Ms. Lee stated the 
importance of sending referrals to LifeSTEPS and commented that a lack of trust can 
sometimes prevent help, but with persistence, the household and LifeSTEPS can work 
together.  Commissioner Bachir raised questions around hoarding issues and Ms. Lee 
explained that LifeSTEPS can bring in health services and gave an example household 
from another city. 

 
 Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, said that LifeSTEPS is a very worthwhile 

program and asked that the names and contact information of program staff be 
available to residents. Mr. Neveln asked for better communication when AHA and 
LifeSTEPS use the IP Community room and asked that there be a shared computer 
with an assistant to help seniors use the computer. Mr. Neveln would like toastmasters 
to be involved in the community and he spoke about hoarding and the positive ways to 
clean spaces. 

 
 A member of the public spoke about the problem of hoarding, gave a positive story 

regarding a hoarding situation, and discussed the stigma of mental illness and ways to 
address hoarding issues in a positive way. 

 
 Commissioner Kay commented on the difference that LifeSTEPS has made in the 

community and appreciates that staff makes residents feel comfortable. Commissioner 
Hadid commented that for some mental illnesses, such as depression, networking and 
family are important and thanked LifeSTEPS for their work and stepping in to help 
individuals that do not have family or friends they can turn to for assistance. 

 
Commissioner Kay moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Hadid seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 5 Commission Vice Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Grob, 

Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 
Rickard 

Absent: 2 Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 

Page 3

Page 3 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

9-B. Verbal Update from October 15, 2019 City of Alameda City Council Meeting Agenda 
Item to Consider Directing Staff to Present Options to the Council on Increasing 
Accountability of, and Addressing Potential Conflict of Interest Issues at, the Alameda 
Housing Authority. (Councilmembers Vella and Oddie) 

 
 Ms. Cooper commented on last night’s presentation and discussion at the City Council 

meeting. At this point, it seems that AHA will not be brought back under the City of 
Alameda, but there are areas that staff will continue to look into regarding accountability 
such as the Hearing Process, independent living, and tenant aging past the point of 
independent living.  City staff will come back to City Council in February/March 2020 
and bring ideas around further accountability. Vice Chair Tamaoki added that 
Councilmembers, having received reports of mistreated tenants, initiated the referral, 
but due to privacy rules, the full details of the situation cannot be disclosed to the public 
without a release of information from the tenant.  

 
 Commissioner Hadid thanked those that worked on the presentation and spoke at the 

Council meeting and commented on strengthening the relationship between AHA and 
the City.. Commissioner Rickard asked if staff has been identified to gather the 
requested information and Ms. Cooper explained that specific staff has not been 
identified, but the City Manager talked about staff in the City Attorney’s Office, 
Community Development, and the City Manager’s Office working together on this 
request. Ms. Cooper also commented that the preparation for the City Council 
presentation took a lot of work and that, the Board needs to be conscious that if AHA 
takes on the bulk of this new project, other AHA projects would shift in priority and new 
Agency priorities would need to be set. Commissioner Rickard asked if there could be a 
monthly status report regarding this research project added to the Board packet and 
Ms. Cooper agreed that this memo can be added, and commented that if requested 
changes are policy changes, they will need to be approved by the Board.  Some 
changes, such as the Hearing Process, would require approval from HUD since the 
Admin Plan would need to be revised.  These changes may also affect the AHA FY 
2019 – 2020 approved budget. 

 
 Commissioner Grob asked if this can be made a priority and asked if AHA can make a 

recommendation earlier than the 2020 City Council meeting.  Ms. Cooper commented 
that yes, it can, but this project will take a significant amount of legal counsel time which 
will change the projected budget costs for FY 2019-2020.  There will also need to be 
adjustments to the order of priorities in the Executive Director goals, as this project was 
not accounted for when the goals were finalized. 

 
 This item was a verbal update, so a motion/action was not needed. 
 
 Chair Tamaoki announced that Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, filed a 

speaker’s slip to discuss item 8-L, “Approve outside employment of the Executive 
Director, per 2014 employment contract between the Board of Commissioners and 
Vanessa Cooper.” Mr. Richard Neveln began to speak about adding a goal associated 
with landscaping at Independence Plaza to the Executive Director goals. It was clarified 
that Mr. Neveln would like to speak on item 9-D “Review and approve goals for the 

Page 4

Page 4 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

Executive Director for the period of October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020” so his 
speaker’s slip was updated. He spoke under item 9-D.  

 
9-C. Approve the Issuance of an RFP for Third Party Property Management Services for 

Properties Owned by AHA and Its Affiliates, AAHC and ICD 
  
 Ms. Lisa Caldwell, Director of Property Operations, explained the memo and that since 

the current contract expires in June 2020, staff would like to go out to bid for additional 
third party property management services.  Ms. Cooper gave additional explanation 
behind the transition of additional properties and explained the two options before the 
Board. Vice Chair Tamaoki commented that this gradual transition towards third party 
management overseeing properties is the right way to go and he is in support of AHA’s 
strategy to move through attrition. 

   
 Commissioner Hadid referred to page 82 and asked if the four locations will receive 

more maintenance and Ms. Cooper explained that yes, the plan is for more in house 
maintenance at the four properties.  As AHA staff retire, properties would then be 
moved to third party management, as this process will shift through attrition.  

 
 A member of the public asked how Public Comment works and if the dialogue between 

the Board and attendees is formal or informal. AHA staff explained the process. 
 

Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, commented on how tenants feel about 
having the same maintenance workers on site and wondered how other tenants feel 
about the process of moving to a third party management company.  Ms. Cooper 
explained that AHA has an annual survey which is distributed amongst tenants and 
when AHA selects a third party property management team through the RFP process, 
staff will contact references and perform due diligence to ensure the company fits into 
AHA’s mission and operation. 

 
Commissioner Hadid moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Grob seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 5 Commission Vice Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Grob, 

Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 
Rickard 

Absent: 2 Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
9-D.  Review and Approve Goals for the Executive Director for the Period of October 1, 2019 

to September 30, 2020 
 
 Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, stated that he would like a restoration of 

the landscaping at IP and that this should be a goal of the Executive Director.  Mr. 
Neveln discussed the dirt in the courtyard, potential groundcover options, and how he 
would redo the courtyard landscaping. 

  

Page 5

Page 5 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 Ms. Cooper stated she would like to come back in November with an update on the 
work required for the October 15, 2019 City Council Meeting request. If extensive time 
is needed for this project, the Board may need to revisit and shift the timing of current 
goals and projects. 

 
Commissioner Rickard moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Hadid seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 5 Commission Vice Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Grob, 

Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 
Rickard 

Absent: 2 Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
9-E. Approve License Agreement With The City Of Alameda For Access To Jean Sweeney 

Park And Authorize The Executive Director Or Her Designee To Negotiate And Execute 
The Agreement 

 
 Ms. Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development explained the 

license agreement and the process using the map provided in the agenda packet. 
There was discussion around how staff has gotten to the license agreement and why a 
license is preferred to an easement. The license will allow for pedestrian and bicycle 
access only. 

 
 Commissioner Rickard gave the reminder to edit the exhibit to correct the wording from 

“easement” to “license” and Ms. Mertz confirmed that the exhibit will be fixed. 
Commissioner Rickard then commented that Jean Sweeney Park is an amazing 
example of citizen activism.  

 
Commissioner Grob moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Hadid seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 5 Commission Vice Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Grob, 

Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 
Rickard 

Absent: 2 Chair Kurrasch and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
 
10.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
  A member of the public asked if having a live-in aide helps bridge the gap between 

independent living and assisted living and Ms. Cooper stated that it does help because 
someone is there if needed, but the expectation of a live-in aide is to assist the tenant, 
not provide 24-hour surveillance of the tenant.  A dialogue then ensued between the 
member of the public, Ms. Cooper, and Vice Chair Tamaoki regarding the struggle of 
tenants transitioning out of independent living and into assisted living and how AHA is 

Page 6

Page 6 of 83



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                      October 16, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

not legally licensed to provide this type of care. Commissioner Kay commented about 
the expectations between what independent living means versus the expectations of 
family members with relatives in independent living.  

 
  The member of the public then asked Vice Chair Tamaoki for clarification around his 

public comment  during the October 15, 2019 City Council meeting regarding the word 
“failure” and the steps a tenant should take before going to the City Council with an 
issue. Vice Chair Tamaoki explained that his use of the word “failure” was not directed 
to the tenant going before the City Council, but that if the tenant felt their only recourse 
was go to before City Council to have their issues heard, somewhere along the line all 
the other mechanisms intended to address concerns failed. .  
A member of the public then asked about solutions to the questions posed at the City 
Council meeting and Ms. Cooper explained that the hope is to create an open 
communication with advocate groups and to have a mediator help in the 
communication. A dialogue ensued around the October 15th City Council meeting and 
the process of reporting issues and concerns. 

 
  Mr. Richard Neveln, a member of the public, commented on earthquakes, the use of 

duck and cover drills and stated that doorways are the safest place to be in an 
earthquake.  Mr. Neveln asked if Board members wanted to walk through the IP 
courtyard to look at the trees, landscaping, and lighting. 

    
11.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 

Commissioner Hadid provided feedback from the NAHRO National Conference & 
Exhibition and provided takeaway information from the event. 
 
Ms. Vanessa Cooper announced the continuation of Closed Session.  
 
The Board of Commissioners Closed Session continued at 9:15 p.m. 
 

3-B.  Closed Session: Purpose:  Conference with legal counsel –anticipated litigation.  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b):  
one potential case. 
 
Vice Chair Tamaoki stated that there was no action from the Board on agenda item 3-A.  
 
The Regular Meeting reconvened at 10:00 p.m. 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no Public Comment on Closed Session items or further business, Vice 
Chair Tamaoki adjourned the meeting at 10:00 p.m. 

 
 
  _____________________     _____________________ 
  Vanessa M. Cooper      Arthur Kurrasch, Chair 
  Executive Director/Secretary    Board of Commissioners 

Page 7

Page 7 of 83



 

                                                                                                           

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Janet Basta, Director of Human Resources and Operations 
 
Date: November 20, 2019 
 
Re:  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations, H.R., and I.T. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This memo provides a high level overview of agency activities in the prior month for 
agency Operations, Human Resources, and IT.  
 
Human Resources and Operations 
 
A summary of unfilled positions that are on the Schedule of Authorized positions is 
presented below. Positions are listed by department, and information about current and 
recent recruitments is included, including any positions on the current Schedule of 
Authorized Positions that Management is electing not to fill or that have been outsourced.  
 

Department Position 
Number of 
Vacant 
Positions 

Recruitment Status Other 
Updates 

Administration Management 
Analyst 

2 FTE One position started 
in November; one 
finished background 
check process  

Both expected 
to be on board 
by early 
December 

 Communications 
Manager 

1 FTE Post position in 
November 

Job 
description 
being 
developed 

 Risk Manager 1 FTE Position posted; 
applications due 
mid-November 

 

     
Finance  0 FTE  Department is 

fully staffed 

Page 8

Page 8 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

                                                                                                           

     
Housing 
Programs  

Housing 
Assistant 

1 FTE Position filled; 
candidate started 
mid-November 

 

 Housing 
Specialist III 

1 FTE In interview process  

     
Property 
Operations 

Maintenance 
Supervisor 

1 FTE Offer made but 
declined 

Revise 
position 
description 
and repost 
after the 
November 
Board meeting 

 Resident 
Manager II (IP) 

1 FTE Offer in process  

 Assistant 
Resident 
Manager (IP)  

.13 FTE Initial posting not 
successful; will 
repost 

 

 Resident 
Manager 
(Parrott Village 
and Gardens) 

1 FTE Property will be 
moved to 3rd party 
management by 
March 31. Security 
is in place at this 
site. 

 

     
Housing and 
Community 
Development 

 0 FTE  Department is 
fully staffed 

     
Rent 
Stabilization 
Program 

 0 FTE  Department is 
fully staffed 

 
Summary:  Total FTE’s approved for FY 2020:  58.50 
  Number of vacancies:     6.13     
  Number of active recruitments:    3.13 
 
Staff attended a number of job-related trainings in October. Two Directors attended the 
Yardi Advanced Solutions Conference.  Jack Geary presented two rounds of a two day 
course on Asset Management onsite at IP, and twelve staff representing departments 
across the agency completed the training. Jack Geary also provided support for an all 

Page 9

Page 9 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

                                                                                                           

Property Operations staff training. And two Directors also attended the CalPERS 
Educational Forum held in Oakland. One Management Analyst attended the HD435-
Rental Housing Development Finance: Problem Solving and Deal Structuring put on by 
the National Development Council. The Executive Director is now serving as the 
President of the California Association of Housing Authorities.  

Open enrollment has concluded with the exception of flexible spending account plans, 
which will be held as soon as the IRS releases the 2020 contribution limits. 2020 rates for 
the employer-provided life and long term disability insurance plans were received, and no 
increase will be in effect for the upcoming year. A representative from ICMA-RC, which 
provides 457 (Deferred Compensation) and payroll Roth IRA plans options to AHA 
employees, presented at the October staff meeting in conjunction with a day of onsite 
consultation and enrollments for interested employees. 
  
Information Technology/Administration  
 
The proposals received for the project-based voucher program were reviewed by the 
HUD Field Office before an award is announced, and were returned to the Housing 
Authority in early November.  In addition, environmental reviews were completed at the 
same time as the reviews are needed before the execution of any contracts.  It is 
anticipated that awards will be announced in November, and contracts will be signed as 
appropriate unless the AHA goes into shortfall before the contracts are executed 
 
The service tickets for September 2019 were reported in the October packet.  Next 
month, the tickets for October will be reported.   

As of 11/4/2019, there have been 455 tickets this year and, at that time, there were 19 
open tickets. Below is a chart of tickets for year 2018 versus 2019. 

 

Page 10

Page 10 of 83



Page 11

Page 11 of 83



Page 12

Page 12 of 83



Page 13

Page 13 of 83



Page 14

Page 14 of 83



Page 15

Page 15 of 83



Page 16

Page 16 of 83



 

                                                                                                           

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:      Lisa Caldwell, Director of Property Operations  

 
Date: November 20, 2019 
 
Re:       Accept the October Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
This memo provides a high-level overview of the Property Operations Department’s 
activities for the month of October 2019.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
VACANCY – October         
 
Lease up coordination between the Property Operations and Housing Programs 
departments continues in order to fill vacancies as soon as possible. Applicants from 
waitlists have been outreached or are in process for applicable vacant units. When 
possible, three applicants are processed for each vacancy. Vacancies that do not have 
a waitlist are posted in the AHA lobby as well as our website.  The table below provides 
ten (10) vacancies at the end of October.  Progress is taking place in filling these 
vacancies. Staff has one (1) move-in scheduled to take place by November 12th and is 
diligently working on securing more move-ins to take place throughout November.  
 

Property Unit 
# 

Vacancies 
End of           

October  

Notice to 
Vacate 

Pending 
Lease 

Pending  Rate  

Anne B. Diament Plaza 65 0 1 0 0% 
China Clipper Plaza 26 0 0 0 0% 
Esperanza  120 4 0 0 3% 
Independence Plaza  186 6  4 2 3% 
Parrot Village 50 0 0 0 0% 
Scattered Sites* 42 0 0 0 0% 

Total  489 10 5 2 2% 
 
*Lincoln House (4), Lincoln/Willow (5), Parrot Gardens (8), Senior Condos (7), Sherman 
Street (9), Stanford House (4), Paru Street (1) and Mulberry Townhomes (4).  
 
The total unit count in the table above includes the five (5) manager units located at Anne 
B. Diament Plaza, Esperanza, Parrot Village, Independence Plaza, and China Clipper.  

Page 17

Page 17 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 2 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

There are currently four (4) units offline due to extensive repairs. These units are not 
included in the vacancy numbers listed above and are outlined below: 
 

Property Number of units  Offline due to: 

*Sherman Street  3 

All three (3) units have a 
connected plumbing issue 
underground.  See Capital 

Improvement attachment for 
dates.  

*Lincoln House 1 

Kitchen fire which has caused 
the entire kitchen and parts of 

roof to be replaced. See 
Capital Improvement 
attachment for dates. 

*Properties included in the scattered sites.  
 
RENT COLLECTIONS – October           
  
Esperanza’s 93% collection rate is a result of four (4) vacant units in the month of October 
as well as one legal case. Applicants for the vacant units are in process and an agreement 
has been reached regarding the legal case and payment will be received in November.  
 
Parrot Village’s 95% collection rate is a result of a new move in adjustment needed and 
one (1) tenant rent outstanding which staff is working with the tenant  to collect.  
 
The Scattered Sites had two (2) vacant units during the month of October.  Both of these 
units were leased at the end of October. As mentioned in the above table for offline units, 
there are four (4) units currently offline due to extensive repairs needed. All four (4) of 
these units are in the process of being contracted out to have the repairs completed.  

GPR - Budget vs. Collected      

Property ABD China 
Clipper ESP IP  Parrot 

Village 
*Scattered 

Sites Total  

Budgeted 
GPR $92,123 $44,629 $322,537 $249,732 $144,225 $86,506 $939,752 

Collected $93,412 $38,194 $301,468 $250,514 $137,300 $66,335 $887,223 

Collection 
Rate 101% 86% 93% 100% 95% 78% 94% 

*Lincoln House (4), Lincoln/Willow (5), Parrot Gardens (8), Senior Condos (7), Sherman 
Street (9), Stanford House (4), Paru Street (1) and Mulberry Townhomes (4). 
 
Property Management staff continues to work with Attorney Bill Ford on terminations of 
tenancy for non-payment of rent. Non-payers are sent monthly to Mr. Ford mid-month, in 

Page 18

Page 18 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 3 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

order to assist with collecting payment on their debts in full and/or entering into a signed 
payment plan. At the end of October, there were three (3) cases actively being managed 
through the Attorney.  By the middle of November, all were managed through a stipulation. 
All households subject to termination are referred to our social services provider, 
LifeSTEPS, for assistance including budgeting and obtaining rental assistance.  Where 
tenant households are also Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) holders, the 
Section 8 staff have also conducted mandatory in person case management conferences 
to remind participants of their obligations under the HCV Program. As mentioned last 
month, due to the current level of legal costs we will be amending and extending the 
amount of the contract, which currently is a not to exceed amount of $100,000 for three 
years. The new not to exceed amount will be $250,000 for the term of the contract.  
 
SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
The below chart outlines the number of hours and services provided by LifeSTEPS for 
the month of October for all AHA managed sites.  
 

Service Participants Hours 
Individual Case Management  343 168 
Education Classes  181 25 
Community Building Enrichment Activities  76 23 
Additional Services & Education  234 26 

 
Alameda Family Services continues to provide services at Esperanza for families, 
seniors and the homeless. After school services are provided by the Boys & Girls Club 
of Alameda. In partnership with AHA, the Alameda Food Bank provides services twice a 
month to both Anne B Diament and Independence Plaza. The Alameda Food Bank 
provides food distribution for Esperanza once a month.  
 
The following total households were served by the Alameda Food Bank in October.  
 

Property No of units Households Served 
Anne B. Diament 65 58 
Independence Plaza 186 88 
Esperanza  120 38 

 
LifeSTEPS and property management staff continued to spend a considerable amount 
of time on tenant cases. There is an increasing number of elderly and disabled tenants 
facing serious challenges with living independently in our owned and subsidized units. 
These growing high acuity households need significant additional services. This 
situation is not unique to Alameda or to AHA. AHA already provides more supportive 
services than most PHAs and does so entirely voluntarily. Further, none of our AHA 
owned and managed properties are required to provide services. Some of the issues 
that arise can also bring pest control, repair and maintenance costs that the tenants 
cannot pay and which must ultimately be borne by the Housing Authority. Some of the 
issues impact not only the individual household, but can also impact neighbors, as well. 

Page 19

Page 19 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 4 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

The City and the Housing Authority intend to create a City-wide Older Adult Care Plan 
as the number of these cases are only going to continue in the affordable units, 
subsidized private rental market and in the private unsubsidized rental market. 
 
RENT INCREASES 
 
Rent increases for 2019 continue to go out monthly.  The increase should not affect the 
tenant’s portion unless the household is residing in an unassisted unit (which often is a 
result of being over income for assistance) or are over housed (i.e. have an extra bedroom 
outside of their approved voucher size). All those who are over housed and have a tenant 
based voucher, have already or will be offered an opportunity to move to the correct sized 
unit when available, provided they are in good standing with AHA. The rent increase 
notices are provided 60 days prior to the effective date of the increase.  
 
Rent increases for Independence Plaza went into effect February 1, 2019 with a 5% 
increase to qualified households. The next scheduled rent increase for Independence 
Plaza will be effective February 1, 2020 with a 2.8% increase to qualified households. As 
a courtesy, an advance notice of rent increase was issued to qualified Independence 
Plaza households on October 1, 2019, although only a 60 day notice is required. Another 
notice will be sent as a reminder closer to February 1, 2020. During the past year, a 
significant number of voucher holders have moved in and this allowed for a lower than 
projected rent increase for existing tenants. Staff continue to work on the long-term 
stabilization plan for Independence Plaza for 2026 when the City – RDA subsidy will no 
longer be available.  
 
MAINTENANCE 
 
Staff is preparing to start working on FY2019-20 HQS preventive maintenance at 
Esperanza. Preventive maintenance is done to ensure units pass HQS within 30 days of 
the initial annual inspections.  Staff is also working on correcting items that did not pass 
Initial HQS at Parrot Village, Parrot Gardens and China Clipper. There were six (6) units 
in October that required extensions beyond the thirty (30) days. The work for the six (6) 
units has been completed and awaiting re-inspection. The maintenance staff has also 
been preparing vacant units for leasing, handling daily routine maintenance requests, and 
performing emergency work orders as needed.  
 
The report below shows the work orders completed calendar year to date and excludes 
JSCO’s work orders. 

Work Order Month 
Property Units  Oct Sep Aug Jul Jun May Apr Mar Feb Jan Total 
AHA Office  N/A 16 9 17 9 17 16 9 12 11 17 133 
Anne B. Diament 65 22 13 9 73 21 14 13 14 12 19 210 
China Clipper Plaza 26 25 13 1 6 10 7 12 9 5 22 110 
Detached Homes 5 2 0 0 4 3 0 1 0 1 0 11 
Esperanza  120 57 32 18 36 32 35 30 51 71 109 471 
Independence Plaza  186 55 48 41 67 42 130 186 64 57 44 734 

Page 20

Page 20 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 5 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

Property Units  Oct Sep Aug Jul Jun May Apr Mar Feb Jan Total 
Lincoln House  4 1 0 0 0 2 2 4 2 3 1 15 
Lincoln Willow Apts 5 4 5 3 2 1 1 1 3 3 4 27 
Parrot Gardens  8 5 8 1 1 0 1 0 2 6 2 26 
Parrot Village  50 35 35 48 15 14 17 27 27 22 20 260 
Senior Condos 7 3 7 1 1 2 0 0 3 1 2 20 
Sherman Street  9 8 6 2 4 5 0 4 5 6 2 42 
Stanford House 4 1 5 1 4 2 0 1 0 0 1 15 

Total 489 234 181 142 222 151 223 288 192 198 243 2,074 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) has requested proposals (RFP) from 
qualified firms to conduct inspections on units owned and managed by the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda for the Property Operations Department.  These are not 
inspections as required under the regulations for the Housing Choice Voucher program, 
but rather, inspections conducted for the property management of the units.  The deadline 
for responses is November 14, 2019.  
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 
The attached table (Attachment 1) summarizes Housing Authority budgeted       
FY2019-20 capital projects currently underway.  
 
The 504/ADA project at Independence Plaza is now complete and closed out regarding 
the unit and parking lot upgrades. The ADA door operators, paddles and fob readers 
throughout the community were removed from the original contractor’s scope due to the 
complexity of the design requirements.  An update on completing the ADA door 
operators, paddles and fob readers is below:  
 

Task Date 
Execute contract   Completed on October 7, 2019  
Provide deposit for work  Completed on October 11, 2019 
Electrical phase work Completed on October 11, 2019 
Buildings 1-5 Entry Doors Hardware installation- completed on 

October 21, 2019 
Data and Software installation completed on 
October 30, 2019 

Building 1 interior side doors & rear doors  Hardware installation- completed on 
November, 2019 
Data and Software installation scheduled to 
be completed on November 15, 2019 

 

Page 21

Page 21 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 6 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

Staff has confirmed that the completed items are operational, and are reviewing the 
work to see if the interior courtyard door paddles need to be operational given fob 
access already in place.  
 
Staff has informed the tenants at Independence Plaza that the ADA doors are 
operational and will be delivering keycards Friday, November 8th through the week of 
November 12th.  Staff provided trainings to tenants on November 8th and, again, on 
Tuesday, November 12th.  
 
THIRD PARTY MANAGED SITES – The John Stewart Company (JSCO) 
 
VACANCY – October     
 

Property Unit # Vacancies End of 
October Rate 

Rosefield Village 53 38 73% 
Eagle Village  36 1 3% 
Littlejohn Commons 31 1 3% 
Everett Commons 20 0 0% 

 
At the end of October, thirty-eight (38) units at Rosefield were permanently offline due to 
the upcoming reconstruction and rehabilitation of the property. As vacancies become 
available at other AHA owned sites, residents currently at Rosefield may be offered these 
vacant units, where eligible, in order to accommodate as many current residents who 
want to remain housed in Alameda. The Relocation Plan and General Information and 
Non Displacement Notice (GIN) has been issued for the remaining tenants describing the 
need to move prior to the rehabilitation.  Ninety (90) day notices will be issued to residents 
on October 16, 2019 informing them of the January 14, 2020 move date.   
 
At the end of October there was one (1) vacant unit at Eagle Village. This unit has an 
applicant in process, as well as back up applications if needed going through the steps of 
leasing, which includes scheduling the units for HQS to ensure the units meet the quality 
standards for move in. This is unit is projected to be leased by the middle of November.    
 
Littlejohn Commons had one (1) vacant unit at the end of October, this unit was leased 
on November 1, 2019.  
 
RENT COLLECTION –September     
 
The financial reporting for properties managed by The John Stewart Company (JSCO) is 
one month behind AHA managed sites due to JSCO providing financial packets in the 
middle of each month for the prior month. 
  

Property Rosefield  
Littlejohn 
Commons 

Eagle 
Village   

Everett 
Commons 

Total 

Budgeted GPR  $   35,972   $    48,485   $  92,983   $    39,357   $  216,797  

Collected  $   36,431   $    50,255   $  82,171   $    39,089   $  207,946  

Collection Rate 101% 104% 88% 99% 96% 

Page 22

Page 22 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 7 of 7 
 

 

                                                                                                           

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Board should expect to see increased legal and social services costs in the property 
budgets as we address the social services needs of the tenants.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Accept the October monthly overview report for Property Operations. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lisa Caldwell 
Director of Property Operations 
 
VMC/all  
 

ATTACHMENT: 
1. FY 2019-20 Capital Projects Update 

Page 23

Page 23 of 83



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
oj

ec
t

O
rig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
or

 B
ud

ge
t A

m
ou

nt

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
Ch

an
ge

 
O

rd
er

s

Cu
rr

en
t o

r R
ev

is
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

 A
m

ou
nt

O
rig

in
al

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 o
r A

ct
ua

l 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n
St

at
us

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
AD

A 
Do

or
s

16
0,

00
0

0
68

,0
00

8/
2/

20
19

11
/1

5/
20

19
W

or
k 

sc
he

du
le

d 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 1

5

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
Sp

rin
kl

er
 In

sp
ec

to
ns

/R
ep

ai
rs

14
,9

95
0

14
,9

95
10

/1
5/

20
19

10
/1

5/
20

19
Co

m
pl

et
e

An
ne

 B
 D

ia
m

on
d 

&
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
Ba

lc
on

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t
20

0,
00

0
0

20
0,

00
0

11
/1

/2
01

9
12

/1
5/

20
19

Co
nt

ra
ct

s e
xe

cu
te

d;
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 b
ei

ng
 sc

he
du

le
d

Sh
er

m
an

 S
tr

ee
t

Ro
of

in
g

14
5,

00
0

0
14

5,
00

0
10

/1
8/

20
19

10
/1

8/
20

19
Co

m
pl

et
e

Sh
em

an
 S

tr
ee

t
Pl

um
bi

ng
25

,0
00

0
80

,0
00

11
/1

/2
01

9
6/

30
/2

02
0

Al
l p

ro
po

sa
ls 

re
ce

iv
ed

 &
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

Es
pe

ra
nz

a
Si

de
w

al
ks

, D
ec

ks
 &

 M
isc

 S
ite

 W
or

k 
(le

nd
er

 re
qu

ire
d)

10
0,

00
0

-
10

0,
00

0
1/

31
/2

02
0

1/
31

/2
02

0
Re

vi
ew

in
g 

le
nd

er
 re

po
rt

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

fin
e 

sc
op

e

Li
nc

ol
n 

Ho
us

e
Fi

re
 D

am
ag

e
10

1,
00

0
-

10
1,

00
0

11
/2

6/
20

19
1/

31
/2

02
0

Pe
rm

it 
se

cu
re

d;
 In

vi
ta

tio
n 

to
 B

id
 w

as
 p

os
te

d 
on

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
1;

 
bi

ds
 d

ue
 o

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

2

Ha
ig

ht
 A

ve
nu

e
Re

no
va

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t (

pe
nd

in
g 

ac
qu

isi
tio

n)
50

0,
00

0
-

50
0,

00
0

-
-

N
o 

up
da

te
, p

ro
je

ct
 p

en
di

ng
 a

cq
ui

sit
io

n

Ro
se

fie
ld

 V
ill

ag
e

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t P
ro

je
ct

7,
00

0,
00

0
-

7,
00

0,
00

0
20

20
20

20
Se

e 
HC

D 
Re

po
rt

N
or

th
 H

ou
sin

g
De

m
o/

N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
3,

00
0,

00
0

-
3,

00
0,

00
0

20
24

20
24

Se
e 

HC
D 

Re
po

rt

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
oj

ec
t

O
rig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
or

 B
ud

ge
t A

m
ou

nt

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
Ch

an
ge

 
O

rd
er

s

Cu
rr

en
t o

r R
ev

is
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

 A
m

ou
nt

O
rig

in
al

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 o
r A

ct
ua

l 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n
St

at
us

An
ne

 B
 D

ia
m

on
d 

&
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
Ba

lc
on

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t
20

0,
00

0
0

20
0,

00
0

11
/1

/2
01

9
11

/1
/2

01
9

M
ov

ed
 to

 2
01

9/
20

 C
IP

 sc
he

du
le

 - 
se

e 
ab

ov
e

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
AD

A 
U

pg
ra

de
 P

ro
je

ct
3,

50
0,

00
0

35
2,

87
5,

15
2

8/
2/

20
19

7/
3/

20
19

Ba
se

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 A

DA
 d

oo
rs

 ro
lle

d 
in

to
 2

01
9/

20
 C

IP
 

sc
he

du
le

 - 
se

e 
ab

ov
e

Sh
em

an
 S

tr
ee

t
Ro

of
in

g,
 P

av
in

g 
&

 D
ra

in
ag

e
20

0,
00

0
0

20
0,

00
0

10
/1

8/
20

19
10

/1
8/

20
19

Ro
of

in
g 

bi
ds

 se
cu

re
d,

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

ov
ed

 to
 2

01
9/

20
 C

IP
 

sc
he

du
le

 - 
se

e 
ab

ov
e

FY
 2

01
8-

19
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s U
pd

at
e

At
ta

ch
m

en
t 1

FY
 2

01
9-

20
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s U
pd

at
e

Page 24

Page 24 of 83



Page 25

Page 25 of 83



Page 26

Page 26 of 83



Page 27

Page 27 of 83



Page 28

Page 28 of 83



Page 29

Page 29 of 83



Page 30

Page 30 of 83



Page 31

Page 31 of 83



Page 32

Page 32 of 83



Page 33

Page 33 of 83



20
20

 A
H

A
 H

ol
id

ay
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

 C
lo

su
re

 C
al

en
da

r 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

 
M

ar
ch

 
 

Ap
ril

 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
 

 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10
 

11
 

 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

 
8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
 

5 
6 

7 
8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 2
1 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 
21

 
22

 
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

 
 1

9 
20

 
21

 
22

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
30

 
31

 
 

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

 
 

 
 

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ay
 

 
Ju

ne
  

 
Ju

ly
 

 
Au

gu
st

 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

2 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
 

 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

 
7 

8 
9 

10
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10
 

11
 

 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

10
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

15
 

16
 

 
14

 
15

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

 
9 

10
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

15
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

 
21

 
22

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 
21

 
22

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
30

 
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
30

 
31

 
 

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
31

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

30
 

31
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
Su

 M
o 

Tu
 W

e 
Th

 
Fr

 
Sa

 
 

Su
 M

o 
Tu

 W
e 

Th
 

Fr
 

Sa
 

 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
2 

3 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
 

 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10
 

 
8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10
 

11
 

12
 

  1
3 

14
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 
16

 
17

 
 

15
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

 
13

 
14

 
15

 
16

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 
21

 
22

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

 
22

 
23

 
24

 
25

 
26

 
27

 
28

 
 

20
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

30
 

31
 

 
29

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
27

 
28

 
29

 
30

 
31

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

K
EY

: R
ed

 =
 H

ol
id

ay
 / 

G
re

en
 =

 O
ffi

ce
 C

lo
se

d 
to

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 / 

Ye
llo

w
 =

 ½
 d

ay
 O

ffi
ce

 C
lo

se
d 

to
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 (N
ov

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 D
ec

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 3
1)

 / 
Bl

ue
 =

Al
t 

H
ol

id
ay

 fo
r f

le
x 

st
af

f. 
N

O
TE

: A
H

A 
is

 c
lo

se
d 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 e
ve

ry
 F

rid
ay

.  
AH

A 
H

ol
id

ay
s 

20
20

 
Ja

n 
1 

N
ew

 Y
ea

r's
 D

ay
  

Fe
b 

17
 

Pr
es

id
en

ts
' D

ay
 

Se
p 

7 
La

bo
r D

ay
 

N
ov

 2
7 

D
ay

 A
fte

r T
ha

nk
sg

iv
in

g 
Ja

n 
20

 
M

ar
tin

 L
ut

he
r K

in
g 

D
ay

 
M

ay
 2

5 
M

em
or

ia
l D

ay
 

N
ov

 1
1 

  V
et

er
an

’s
  D

ay
  

D
ec

 2
5 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 D

ay
 

 
 

Ju
l 3

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 D

ay
 (o

bs
er

ve
d)

   
N

ov
 2

6  
Th

an
ks

gi
vi

ng
 D

ay
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 34

Page 34 of 83

http://www.calendarpedia.com/


Page 35

Page 35 of 83



Page 36

Page 36 of 83



 

Page 37

Page 37 of 83

lso
Text Box

lso
Text Box



Page 38

Page 38 of 83

lso
Text Box

lso
Text Box



Page 39

Page 39 of 83

lso
Text Box

lso
Text Box



Page 40

Page 40 of 83



Page 41

Page 41 of 83



Page 42

Page 42 of 83



Page 43

Page 43 of 83



11/8/2019 4:07 PM

Current Balance
1000000 ASSETS
1100000 CURRENT ASSETS
1101000 CASH
1110010 Cash - Unrestricted 5,804,730                  
1110012 Cash - Reserve for Building 78,451                      
1110013 Cash - Reserve for 3rd Party Managed Buildings 862,913                    
1110014 Cash - Reserve for Equipment 2,152                        
1110018 Cash - Operating Checking with 3rd Party 841,540                    
1110019 Petty Cash with 3rd Party 200                           
1110020 Cash - Petty cash 250                           
1110021 Cash - Benefit Account 78,121                      
1110030 Cash - FSS 145,056                    
1110040 Cash - Replacement Reserve Bldg 126,415                    
1130030 Cash - Restricted Sec Dep 76,775                      
1140000 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 500,240                    
1140050 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits with 3rd Party 46,593                      
1199000 TOTAL CASH 8,563,436                  
1200000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
1240010 Accounts Receivable -  Government 957,813                    
1240050 HAP Rent Receivable 29,911                      
1250010 Accounts Receivable - Other 665,011                    
1250050 Accounts Receivable - 3rd Party Management 896                           
1255000 Subsidy Suspense Receivable (28,177)                     
1260000 Accounts Receivable - Tenant 670,540                    
1260050 Accounts Receivable - Tenant Rent with 3rd Party 18,102                      
1261000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Dwelling Rent (61,830)                     
1280000 Fraud Recovery 36,869                      
1281000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud (36,144)                     
1290000 Accrued Interest Receivable 98,283                      
1299000 TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,351,275                  
1300000 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES
1310000 Investments(LAIF)- Unrestricted 9,549,589                  
1320010 Investments - Other 200                           
1320020 Investments(LAIF) (Restricted) - FSS Escrow (327)                          
1320030 Investments(LAIF)- Building Reserve 1,266,844                  
1320040 Investments(LAIF) - Equipment Reserve 280,359                    
1320201 Investment Reserved for IP-LAIF 425,344                    
1350010 Investment(LAIF)-Restricted (Jack Capon Villa Trust) 1,372                        
1350020 Investment-OPEB (Restricted) 1,158,615                  
1350023 PFM-Accured Interest (130)                          
1350031 Investments - CAMP 8,281,959                  
1350100 Mortgage Receivable 26,188,472                
1350103 Mortgage Receivable-Jack Capon L. P. 129,981                    

Balance Sheet
Period = Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

 Page 1 of 5

Page 44

Page 44 of 83



11/8/2019 4:07 PM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

1350106 Loan Receivable - ICD 15,329,430                
1350107 Loan Receivable-RCD/Stargell/Tri Pointe 2,000,000                  
1350109 Loan Receivable - Section 8 650,000                    
1360000 TOTAL INVESTEMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES 65,261,839                
1400000 PREPAID EXPENSES
1420010 Prepaid Insurance - Property 46,323                      
1420020 Prepaid Insurance -  Liability 33,207                      
1420030 Prepaid Insurance -  Auto 4,105                        
1420040 Prepaid Insurance -  Worker Comp 27,390                      
1420050 Prepaid - Other 8,478                        
1420051 Prepaid Rent 14,400                      
1420070 Escrow Deposits - Property 75,193                      
1420075 Escrow Dep. PNC Hedge Res. 65,910                      
1430000 Inventories 9,810                        
1430010 Replacement Reserve-NorthMarq Loan 516,909                    
1430020 Reserve for Replacement NorthMarq 516,079                    
1440099 TOTAL PREPAID EXPENSES 1,317,804                  
1440105 INTERPROGRAM
1440110 Interprogram (Due From) 178,056                    
1440111 Interprogram Due From Sherman St FACSA 12,725                      
1440112 Interprogram Due From Lincoln St FACSA 7,093                        
1440210 Interprogram Due From Esperanza 688                           
1440411 Interprogram Due from Detached Home (0)                             
1440451 Interprogram Due From 2437 Eagle Ave - 4532 19,735                      
1440452 Interprogram Due From Stargell Commons 8,156                        
1440453 Interprogram Due From Island City Development - 4530 204                           
1440601 Interprogram Due From ABD (22,496)                     
1440602 Interprogram Due From Rosefield Village - 4537 219                           
1440603 Interprogram Due From Parrot Gardens 15                             
1440604 Interprogram Due From Stanford House 5                               
1440605 Interprogram Due From Lincoln/Willow 15                             
1440606 Interprogram Due From Senior Condos 18                             
1440607 Interprogram Due From China Clipper 408                           
1440608 Interprogram Due From Regent Street Land 1,530                        
1440609 Interprogram Due From Santa Clara Land 60                             
1440610 Interprogram Due From Eagle Village 265                           
1440613 Interprogram Due From Shinsei Gardens 2,580                        
1440710 Interprogram Due From Section 8 Vouchers 435,590                    
1440810 Interprogram Due From Independence Plaza 611                           
1440899 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 645,477                    
1500000 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 78,139,702                
1590000 LONG TERM ASSETS
1600000 FIXED ASSETS

 Page 2 of 5

Page 45

Page 45 of 83



11/8/2019 4:07 PM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

1609999 LAND AND BUILDINGS
1610000 Land 58,219,779                
1620030 Buildings 31,599,053                
1620031 Buildings Improvements 2,146,760                  
1629000 TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 91,965,591                
1630040 Furniture and Equipment - Dwelling 355,075                    
1630041 Furniture and Equipment - Other 96,032                      
1650000 Leasehold Improvements 14,213,821                
1660030 Accumulated Deprecation (28,832,678)               
1660060 Accumulated Depreciation - 3rd Party (533)                          
1699000 TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 77,797,309                
1800000 DEFERRED OUTFLOW
1800200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 2,509,532                  
1890000 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW 2,509,532                  
1900000 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
1900100 CIP - On Site Improvement (381)                          
1900230 CIP - Professional Services (Other) 8,568                        
1900290 CIP - Organization - Legal 6,078                        
1900410 CIP - Environmental Testing & Reports 13,800                      
1900420 CIP - Permit & Fees (plan'g,build'g,public work,school dist) 4,086                        
1900430 CIP - Utilities Fees 608                           
1919999 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 32,758                      
1929999 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 80,339,599                
1999999 TOTAL ASSETS 158,479,301              
3000000 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
3005000 LIABILITIES
3100000 CURRENT LIABILITIES
3100500 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
3120010 Accounts Payable<= 90 Days 145,276                    
3120011 Accounts Payable -CALPERS (employee portion) 0                               
3120012 Accounts Payable-Health Insurance (employee portion) 24                             
3120014 Accounts Payable-Garnishment (employee portion) (129)                          
3120015 Accounts Payable-Vision Insurance (employee portion) 681                           
3120016 Accounts Payable-Life Insurance (employee portion) (149)                          
3120018 Accounts Payable-PARS retirement (employee portion) 134                           
3120019 Accounts Payable-Flexible Spending Account(employee portion) 3,177                        
3120021 Employees Cobra (146)                          
3120022 Accounts Payable-PERS 1959 Surv(Employee Portion) 41                             
3120023 Accounts Payable-FSA Transit Plan 2,880                        
3120024 Accounts Payable FSS 110,483                    
3120026 Accounts Payable FSS Interest 26                             
3120029 Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management Company 26,796                      
3120030 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 1,102                        

 Page 3 of 5

Page 46

Page 46 of 83



11/8/2019 4:07 PM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

3120040 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Current Portion 138,785                    
3120045 Accrued Vacation Payable - 3rd Party Management 6,470                        
3120070 Accrued Payables 150,640                    
3120075 Accrued Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management 112,705                    
3330100 Tenants- Rents Payable 9,900                        
3339000 TOTAL ACCOUNT PAYABLE 708,695                    
3400000 SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD
3410010 Tenant Security Deposits 537,897                    
3410015 Tenant Security Deposits - held with 3rd Party Management 46,143                      
3410020 Tenant Security Deposits - Pets 1,225                        
3410030 Tenant Security Deposits - Gate Opener 50                             
3410040 Tenant Security Deposits - Satellite Dish/Antenna 1,700                        
3410060 Tenant Security Deposits - Pooled Interest 63,760                      
3410999 Security Deposit Refund 9,939                        
3419000 TOTAL SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD 660,714                    
3419900 OTHER LIABILITIES
3420000 Prepay Tenant Rent 91,987                      
3421000 Prepay Tenant Rent - 3rd Party Management 5,373                        
3425000 Unearned Revenue 842,312                    
3426000 Prepaid Ground Lease Rent 3,410,000                  
3430000 Current Portion of Long Term Debt -  Capital Projects 596,960                    
3449000 TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 4,946,631                  
3470000 INTERPROGRAM
3470050 Interprogram (Due to) 175,111                    
3470110 Interprogram Due To General Fund 488,219                    
3470601 Interprogram Due To Anne B Diament Plaza 19,786                      
3471000 Due To/Due From Suspense Account (276,196)                   
3480000 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 406,920                    
3499000 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,722,960                  
3500000 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
3510100 Mortgage Loan Payable 36,062,106                
3510103 Mortgage Loan Payable- Alameda County 26,250                      
3510130 Interest Payable - City of Alameda Loan 1,032,285                  
3510140 Home Fund Loan #1 218,689                    
3510150 Housing Community Dev. Loan 916,400                    
3510157 Loan Payable - Esperanza 650,000                    
3510158 Loan Payable - CDBG 575,000                    
3510160 Home Fund Loan #2 282,700                    
3540000 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Noncurrent 104,967                    
3570000 OPEB Liability 15,285                      
3580000 Pension Liability 2,127,040                  
3599000 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 42,010,723                
3999000 TOTAL LIABILITIES 48,733,683                

 Page 4 of 5

Page 47

Page 47 of 83



11/8/2019 4:07 PM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

4000000 Equity/Net Assets
4000001 EQUITY
4000100 DEFERRED INFLOW
4001000 Deferred Inflow of Resources 2,507,319                  
4900000 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW 2,507,319                  
4999999 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
5010000 Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,938,655                  
5080060 Donations 36,197,725                
5090000 Unrestricted 39,559,282                
5120000 Unrestricted 21,938,354                
5120010 Net Restricted Assets 604,283                    
5950000 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 107,238,299              
5999900 TOTAL EQUITY 109,745,618              
6000000 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 158,479,301              

 Page 5 of 5

Page 48

Page 48 of 83



11
/8

/2
01

9 
4:

10
 P

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

69
99

99
0

IN
C

O
M

E
70

00
00

0
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

70
20

00
0

T
E

N
A

N
T

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
70

30
00

0
T

en
an

t R
en

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
37

5,
11

8.
97

30
9,

72
9.

00
65

,3
89

.9
7

21
.1

1
1,

10
0,

29
7.

78
1,

06
6,

28
0.

00
34

,0
17

.7
8

3.
19

70
30

03
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

61
1.

00
0.

00
61

1.
00

N
/A

1,
31

8.
77

0.
00

1,
31

8.
77

N
/A

70
30

04
0

L
at

e 
C

ha
rg

es
47

5.
00

0.
00

47
5.

00
N

/A
1,

32
5.

00
0.

00
1,

32
5.

00
N

/A
70

30
05

0
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

O
th

er
 C

ha
rg

es
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
30

6.
00

0.
00

30
6.

00
N

/A
70

30
06

0
T

ax
 I

nc
re

m
en

t P
ay

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

A
la

m
ed

a
93

,6
38

.1
7

14
4,

44
5.

00
-5

0,
80

6.
83

-3
5.

17
28

0,
91

4.
49

43
3,

33
5.

00
-1

52
,4

20
.5

1
-3

5.
17

70
30

10
0

T
en

an
t H

A
P

 S
ub

si
dy

59
2,

62
1.

45
66

4,
88

6.
00

-7
2,

26
4.

55
-1

0.
87

1,
73

9,
44

8.
06

1,
99

4,
66

8.
00

-2
55

,2
19

.9
4

-1
2.

80
70

30
11

0
V

ac
an

cy
 L

os
s

-6
6,

44
3.

00
-5

3,
49

2.
00

-1
2,

95
1.

00
24

.2
1

-1
71

,5
72

.0
0

-1
60

,4
80

.0
0

-1
1,

09
2.

00
6.

91
70

30
30

0
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 R

en
ts

2,
55

2.
00

2,
50

5.
00

47
.0

0
1.

88
7,

65
6.

00
7,

51
5.

00
14

1.
00

1.
88

70
40

00
0

O
th

er
 T

en
an

t R
ev

en
ue

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

28
0.

55
0.

00
28

0.
55

N
/A

70
50

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

99
8,

57
3.

59
1,

06
8,

07
3.

00
-6

9,
49

9.
41

-6
.5

1
2,

95
9,

97
4.

65
3,

34
1,

31
8.

00
-3

81
,3

43
.3

5
-1

1.
41

70
60

00
0

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 G

R
A

N
T

S
70

60
06

0
Sh

el
te

r 
P

lu
s 

C
ar

e 
R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
37

,2
17

.0
0

-3
7,

21
7.

00
-1

00
.0

0
78

,2
20

.1
4

11
1,

65
4.

00
-3

3,
43

3.
86

-2
9.

94
70

69
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 G

R
A

N
T

S
0.

00
37

,2
17

.0
0

-3
7,

21
7.

00
-1

00
.0

0
78

,2
20

.1
4

11
1,

65
4.

00
-3

3,
43

3.
86

-2
9.

94
71

00
00

0
O

T
H

E
R

 I
N

C
O

M
E

71
10

01
0

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e 
- 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
62

,9
75

.2
6

11
,3

07
.0

0
51

,6
68

.2
6

45
6.

96
62

,9
75

.2
6

33
,9

25
.0

0
29

,0
50

.2
6

85
.6

3
71

10
01

1
In

te
re

st
 I

nc
om

e
15

,6
38

.4
6

25
,4

03
.0

0
-9

,7
64

.5
4

-3
8.

44
49

,6
60

.0
2

76
,2

09
.0

0
-2

6,
54

8.
98

-3
4.

84
71

10
01

2
P

F
M

-I
nv

es
tm

en
t I

nc
om

e
0.

00
1,

99
0.

00
-1

,9
90

.0
0

-1
00

.0
0

0.
00

5,
97

0.
00

-5
,9

70
.0

0
-1

00
.0

0
71

10
01

3
C

ou
po

n/
In

te
re

st
/D

iv
id

en
d 

In
co

m
e

0.
00

3.
00

-3
.0

0
-1

00
.0

0
0.

00
9.

00
-9

.0
0

-1
00

.0
0

71
10

02
0

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

E
qu

ip
. R

es
er

ve
1,

05
6.

96
27

8.
00

77
8.

96
28

0.
20

1,
05

6.
96

83
8.

00
21

8.
96

26
.1

3
71

10
03

0
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
0.

00
52

.0
0

-5
2.

00
-1

00
.0

0
0.

00
15

6.
00

-1
56

.0
0

-1
00

.0
0

71
10

06
0

In
te

re
st

 -
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t R

es
er

ve
7,

29
6.

20
4,

03
6.

00
3,

26
0.

20
80

.7
8

7,
29

6.
20

12
,1

09
.0

0
-4

,8
12

.8
0

-3
9.

75
71

10
07

0
O

th
er

 -
 I

nc
om

e
1,

00
3.

67
61

0.
00

39
3.

67
64

.5
4

7,
80

7.
35

1,
83

0.
00

5,
97

7.
35

32
6.

63
71

10
07

5
L

au
nd

ry
 C

om
m

is
si

on
1,

64
7.

68
2,

22
4.

00
-5

76
.3

2
-2

5.
91

6,
06

5.
33

6,
67

2.
00

-6
06

.6
7

-9
.0

9
71

10
08

2
L

an
d 

F
ee

/G
ro

un
d 

L
ea

se
0.

00
44

7.
00

-4
47

.0
0

-1
00

.0
0

44
6.

99
1,

34
1.

00
-8

94
.0

1
-6

6.
67

71
10

09
2

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

en
ue

11
1,

67
1.

62
17

7,
90

1.
00

-6
6,

22
9.

38
-3

7.
23

32
5,

79
6.

70
53

3,
70

3.
00

-2
07

,9
06

.3
0

-3
8.

96
71

50
03

0
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
60

1.
95

0.
00

60
1.

95
N

/A
60

1.
95

0.
00

60
1.

95
N

/A
71

50
05

0
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

O
th

er
 I

nc
om

e-
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
35

.1
0

0.
00

35
.1

0
N

/A
35

.1
0

0.
00

35
.1

0
N

/A
71

50
07

0
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
0.

00
1,

50
5.

00
-1

,5
05

.0
0

-1
00

.0
0

54
9.

25
4,

51
8.

00
-3

,9
68

.7
5

-8
7.

84
71

59
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 I

N
C

O
M

E
20

1,
92

6.
90

22
5,

75
6.

00
-2

3,
82

9.
10

-1
0.

56
46

2,
29

1.
11

67
7,

28
0.

00
-2

14
,9

88
.8

9
-3

1.
74

80
00

00
0

H
U

D
 G

R
A

N
T

80
10

00
0

H
U

D
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
s

2,
55

5,
62

5.
00

2,
47

9,
89

9.
00

75
,7

26
.0

0
3.

05
7,

74
5,

51
5.

00
7,

43
9,

69
3.

00
30

5,
82

2.
00

4.
11

80
20

00
0

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

F
ee

s 
fr

om
 H

U
D

14
0,

19
5.

00
14

7,
16

2.
00

-6
,9

67
.0

0
-4

.7
3

44
8,

47
4.

00
44

1,
48

8.
00

6,
98

6.
00

1.
58

80
20

11
0

P
O

R
T

-I
n 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

F
ee

s
1,

99
5.

00
0.

00
1,

99
5.

00
N

/A
5,

16
9.

71
0.

00
5,

16
9.

71
N

/A
80

30
00

0
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
s 

P
ai

d 
(P

O
R

T
-O

ut
s)

5,
34

5.
81

0.
00

-5
,3

45
.8

1
N

/A
15

,1
22

.9
5

0.
00

-1
5,

12
2.

95
N

/A
81

00
12

0
T

O
T

A
L

 H
U

D
 G

R
A

N
T

2,
69

2,
46

9.
19

2,
62

7,
06

1.
00

65
,4

08
.1

9
2.

49
8,

18
4,

03
5.

76
7,

88
1,

18
1.

00
30

2,
85

4.
76

3.
84

89
99

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

3,
89

2,
96

9.
68

3,
95

8,
10

7.
00

-6
5,

13
7.

32
-1

.6
5

11
,6

84
,5

21
.6

6
12

,0
11

,4
33

.0
0

-3
26

,9
11

.3
4

-2
.7

2
90

00
00

0
E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

90
00

90
0

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
91

00
00

0
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

91
10

01
0

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Sa
la

rie
s

34
0,

08
0.

93
40

3,
04

8.
00

62
,9

67
.0

7
15

.6
2

86
7,

00
8.

55
1,

20
9,

12
0.

00
34

2,
11

1.
45

28
.2

9
91

10
02

0
T

em
po

ra
ry

 H
el

p 
- 

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

28
,5

46
.6

4
42

,8
99

.0
0

14
,3

52
.3

6
33

.4
6

49
,4

23
.6

7
12

8,
69

8.
00

79
,2

74
.3

3
61

.6
0

91
20

00
0

A
ud

iti
ng

 F
ee

s
2,

50
0.

00
3,

87
0.

00
1,

37
0.

00
35

.4
0

6,
00

0.
00

11
,6

10
.0

0
5,

61
0.

00
48

.3
2

91
30

00
0

O
ut

si
de

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
s

3,
42

2.
00

0.
00

-3
,4

22
.0

0
N

/A
14

,7
74

.0
0

0.
00

-1
4,

77
4.

00
N

/A
91

50
01

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 -

  M
ed

ic
al

/D
en

ta
l

65
,4

74
.1

9
10

6,
92

9.
00

41
,4

54
.8

1
38

.7
7

17
3,

30
6.

63
32

0,
75

7.
00

14
7,

45
0.

37
45

.9
7

91
50

02
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  P

E
R

S/
P

A
R

S
28

,6
28

.3
4

40
,8

34
.0

0
12

,2
05

.6
6

29
.8

9
79

,4
50

.0
4

12
2,

51
1.

00
43

,0
60

.9
6

35
.1

5
91

50
03

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 -

  F
IC

A
4,

87
3.

44
6,

45
9.

00
1,

58
5.

56
24

.5
5

12
,4

17
.8

1
19

,3
99

.0
0

6,
98

1.
19

35
.9

9
91

50
04

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

  S
U

I
11

3.
78

1,
18

0.
00

1,
06

6.
22

90
.3

6
1,

48
9.

42
3,

54
1.

00
2,

05
1.

58
57

.9
4

91
50

06
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

 -
 L

ife
/L

T
D

2,
47

7.
14

2,
77

2.
00

29
4.

86
10

.6
4

6,
48

8.
05

8,
31

2.
00

1,
82

3.
95

21
.9

4

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
P

er
io

d 
=

 J
ul

 2
01

9-
Se

p 
20

19
B

oo
k 

=
 A

cc
ru

al

 P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4

Page 49

Page 49 of 83



11
/8

/2
01

9 
4:

10
 P

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
P

er
io

d 
=

 J
ul

 2
01

9-
Se

p 
20

19
B

oo
k 

=
 A

cc
ru

al

91
50

09
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

 -
 W

C
3,

93
4.

44
2,

94
9.

00
-9

85
.4

4
-3

3.
42

10
,8

70
.6

3
8,

83
9.

00
-2

,0
31

.6
3

-2
2.

98
91

60
01

0
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s/
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

44
2.

69
7,

65
0.

00
4,

20
7.

31
55

.0
0

14
,8

36
.7

2
22

,9
50

.0
0

8,
11

3.
28

35
.3

5
91

60
03

0
D

ue
s 

&
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

2,
08

6.
00

30
0.

00
-1

,7
86

.0
0

-5
95

.3
3

91
60

04
0

P
os

ta
ge

66
.4

2
4,

14
4.

00
4,

07
7.

58
98

.4
0

48
8.

18
12

,4
32

.0
0

11
,9

43
.8

2
96

.0
7

91
60

05
0

T
el

ep
ho

ne
6,

15
7.

00
5,

30
7.

00
-8

50
.0

0
-1

6.
02

16
,7

05
.0

8
15

,9
21

.0
0

-7
84

.0
8

-4
.9

2
91

60
06

0
B

an
k 

C
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

 C
he

ck
 S

up
pl

ie
s

2,
51

2.
81

2,
46

1.
00

-5
1.

81
-2

.1
1

7,
54

5.
15

7,
38

2.
00

-1
63

.1
5

-2
.2

1
91

60
09

0
F

or
m

s 
an

d 
C

op
ie

s/
P

ri
nt

in
g

8,
25

6.
86

42
5.

00
-7

,8
31

.8
6

-1
,8

42
.7

9
11

,3
09

.2
6

1,
27

5.
00

-1
0,

03
4.

26
-7

87
.0

0
91

60
10

0
C

la
ss

ifi
ed

 A
ds

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 N

ot
ic

es
/o

ut
re

ac
h 

m
at

er
ia

l
3,

27
8.

17
3,

17
3.

00
-1

05
.1

7
-3

.3
1

6,
34

7.
47

9,
51

9.
00

3,
17

1.
53

33
.3

2
91

60
11

0
L

eg
al

 E
xp

en
se

21
,4

03
.0

0
22

,7
58

.0
0

1,
35

5.
00

5.
95

36
,2

56
.9

1
68

,2
74

.0
0

32
,0

17
.0

9
46

.9
0

91
60

11
1

P
ay

ro
ll 

ch
ar

ge
69

6.
99

68
6.

00
-1

0.
99

-1
.6

0
2,

12
9.

41
2,

06
4.

00
-6

5.
41

-3
.1

7
91

60
11

2
Su

rv
ey

/T
itl

e 
F

ee
1,

69
9.

00
16

7.
00

-1
,5

32
.0

0
-9

17
.3

7
1,

69
9.

00
50

1.
00

-1
,1

98
.0

0
-2

39
.1

2
91

60
11

3
O

ff
ic

e 
R

en
t

0.
00

10
,6

11
.0

0
10

,6
11

.0
0

10
0.

00
5,

26
5.

15
31

,8
33

.0
0

26
,5

67
.8

5
83

.4
6

91
60

11
5

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
C

os
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

20
.0

0
0.

00
-2

0.
00

N
/A

91
60

12
0

T
ra

in
in

g/
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

l
-2

2,
18

4.
09

13
,7

73
.0

0
35

,9
57

.0
9

26
1.

07
-1

3,
53

9.
69

40
,8

04
.0

0
54

,3
43

.6
9

13
3.

18
91

60
13

0
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

ue
s 

an
d 

F
ee

s
0.

00
97

4.
00

97
4.

00
10

0.
00

6,
09

9.
60

2,
92

2.
00

-3
,1

77
.6

0
-1

08
.7

5
91

60
13

1
T

ax
es

 &
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
ee

s
-6

23
.0

0
0.

00
62

3.
00

N
/A

-5
38

.0
0

0.
00

53
8.

00
N

/A
91

60
14

0
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
L

os
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

19
8.

00
0.

00
-1

98
.0

0
N

/A
91

60
16

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
18

,0
42

.0
2

28
4.

00
-1

7,
75

8.
02

-6
,2

52
.8

2
18

,0
42

.0
2

85
2.

00
-1

7,
19

0.
02

-2
,0

17
.6

1
91

60
17

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
/C

on
su

lta
nt

2,
13

5.
71

33
,0

85
.0

0
30

,9
49

.2
9

93
.5

4
23

,5
20

.9
2

99
,2

55
.0

0
75

,7
34

.0
8

76
.3

0
91

60
18

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

- 
Y

ar
di

1,
17

5.
00

18
,7

52
.0

0
17

,5
77

.0
0

93
.7

3
12

,3
11

.7
2

56
,2

56
.0

0
43

,9
44

.2
8

78
.1

1
91

60
19

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 C

om
pu

te
r/

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
/E

m
ai

l
11

,7
30

.9
5

18
,7

76
.0

0
7,

04
5.

05
37

.5
2

30
,9

42
.2

2
56

,3
28

.0
0

25
,3

85
.7

8
45

.0
7

91
60

22
0

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

0.
00

5,
74

2.
00

5,
74

2.
00

10
0.

00
52

.5
0

17
,2

27
.0

0
17

,1
74

.5
0

99
.7

0
91

60
23

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 H

ou
si

ng
 I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
11

,5
50

.7
0

4,
72

8.
00

-6
,8

22
.7

0
-1

44
.3

0
18

,4
74

.8
5

14
,1

64
.0

0
-4

,3
10

.8
5

-3
0.

44
91

60
26

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 O

ff
ic

e 
M

ac
hi

ne
 L

ea
se

1,
28

6.
62

1,
56

8.
00

28
1.

38
17

.9
5

3,
37

7.
34

4,
70

4.
00

1,
32

6.
66

28
.2

0
91

60
27

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 W

eb
 H

os
tin

g/
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
/W

eb
 A

ds
96

2.
50

1,
44

1.
00

47
8.

50
33

.2
1

3,
18

6.
55

4,
32

3.
00

1,
13

6.
45

26
.2

9
91

60
29

0
C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 H

R
 R

ec
ru

itm
en

t
15

7.
50

11
,1

21
.0

0
10

,9
63

.5
0

98
.5

8
4,

45
4.

00
33

,3
63

.0
0

28
,9

09
.0

0
86

.6
5

91
60

51
0

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

D
ue

s
20

,5
74

.6
6

3,
50

0.
00

-1
7,

07
4.

66
-4

87
.8

5
42

,1
64

.9
6

10
,5

00
.0

0
-3

1,
66

4.
96

-3
01

.5
7

91
69

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

57
2,

37
2.

41
78

2,
16

6.
00

20
9,

79
3.

59
26

.8
2

1,
47

4,
66

4.
12

2,
34

5,
93

6.
00

87
1,

27
1.

88
37

.1
4

92
00

00
0

T
E

N
A

N
T

/
SO

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S/

P
O

L
IC

E
92

10
01

0
T

en
an

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

Sa
la

rie
s

13
,4

82
.8

3
49

2.
00

-1
2,

99
0.

83
-2

,6
40

.4
1

42
,3

22
.7

2
1,

47
6.

00
-4

0,
84

6.
72

-2
,7

67
.3

9
92

10
03

0
P

ol
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
0.

00
17

,5
48

.0
0

17
,5

48
.0

0
10

0.
00

17
,5

00
.0

0
52

,6
44

.0
0

35
,1

44
.0

0
66

.7
6

92
10

10
0

T
en

an
t/

So
ci

al
 S

ev
ic

es
 -

  S
al

ar
ie

s
0.

00
16

,1
07

.0
0

16
,1

07
.0

0
10

0.
00

0.
00

48
,3

00
.0

0
48

,3
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
92

19
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 T
E

N
A

N
T

/S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S/

P
O

L
IC

E
13

,4
82

.8
3

34
,1

47
.0

0
20

,6
64

.1
7

60
.5

2
59

,8
22

.7
2

10
2,

42
0.

00
42

,5
97

.2
8

41
.5

9
92

19
99

0
R

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

92
20

00
0

T
en

an
t-

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

C
os

ts
3,

62
5.

98
0.

00
-3

,6
25

.9
8

N
/A

5,
38

3.
18

0.
00

-5
,3

83
.1

8
N

/A
92

29
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
3,

62
5.

98
0.

00
-3

,6
25

.9
8

N
/A

5,
38

3.
18

0.
00

-5
,3

83
.1

8
N

/A
92

30
00

5
T

E
N

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S 
A

N
D

 I
N

SU
R

A
N

C
E

92
30

01
0

T
en

an
t S

vc
s 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 -

 M
ed

ic
al

/D
en

ta
l

3,
47

5.
65

3,
57

2.
00

96
.3

5
2.

70
7,

50
8.

89
10

,7
28

.0
0

3,
21

9.
11

30
.0

1
92

30
02

0
T

en
an

t S
vc

s 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  P

E
R

S/
P

A
R

S
59

6.
82

1,
63

5.
00

1,
03

8.
18

63
.5

0
2,

04
6.

57
4,

89
4.

00
2,

84
7.

43
58

.1
8

92
30

03
0

T
en

an
t S

vc
s 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 -

 F
IC

A
11

9.
12

72
5.

00
60

5.
88

83
.5

7
39

1.
55

2,
16

7.
00

1,
77

5.
45

81
.9

3
92

30
04

0
T

en
an

t S
vc

s 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

 -
 S

U
I

2.
78

16
1.

00
15

8.
22

98
.2

7
48

.5
4

47
7.

00
42

8.
46

89
.8

2
92

30
08

0
T

en
an

t S
vc

s 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
 O

th
er

88
3.

26
0.

00
-8

83
.2

6
N

/A
1,

05
8.

78
0.

00
-1

,0
58

.7
8

N
/A

92
30

09
0

T
en

an
t S

vc
s 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

it 
- 

W
C

58
3.

05
2,

00
5.

00
1,

42
1.

95
70

.9
2

2,
05

3.
36

5,
99

9.
00

3,
94

5.
64

65
.7

7
92

39
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S 

A
N

D
 I

N
SU

R
A

N
C

E
5,

66
0.

68
8,

09
8.

00
2,

43
7.

32
30

.1
0

13
,1

07
.6

9
24

,2
65

.0
0

11
,1

57
.3

1
45

.9
8

92
40

00
5

T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
92

40
01

0
T

en
an

t/
So

ci
al

 S
ev

ic
es

 -
 S

up
pl

ie
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

32
1.

20
0.

00
-3

21
.2

0
N

/A
92

40
02

0
T

en
an

t S
er

vi
ce

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 -

  C
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

nd
 O

/S
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

25
,9

01
.0

0
25

,9
01

.0
0

10
0.

00
40

,7
89

.6
9

77
,0

85
.0

0
36

,2
95

.3
1

47
.0

8
92

49
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0.

00
25

,9
01

.0
0

25
,9

01
.0

0
10

0.
00

41
,1

10
.8

9
77

,0
85

.0
0

35
,9

74
.1

1
46

.6
7

93
00

00
0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

93
10

00
0

W
at

er
18

,9
39

.0
0

22
,7

52
.0

0
3,

81
3.

00
16

.7
6

52
,9

52
.7

2
68

,2
56

.0
0

15
,3

03
.2

8
22

.4
2

93
20

00
0

E
le

ct
ric

ity
28

,5
18

.0
1

12
,0

17
.0

0
-1

6,
50

1.
01

-1
37

.3
1

36
,0

49
.0

3
36

,0
51

.0
0

1.
97

0.
01

 P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4

Page 50

Page 50 of 83



11
/8

/2
01

9 
4:

10
 P

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
P

er
io

d 
=

 J
ul

 2
01

9-
Se

p 
20

19
B

oo
k 

=
 A

cc
ru

al

93
30

00
0

G
as

-4
,1

72
.5

6
4,

48
4.

00
8,

65
6.

56
19

3.
05

11
,2

93
.3

2
13

,4
70

.0
0

2,
17

6.
68

16
.1

6
93

80
01

0
Se

w
er

3,
49

9.
81

25
,7

03
.0

0
22

,2
03

.1
9

86
.3

8
18

,7
97

.5
1

77
,1

09
.0

0
58

,3
11

.4
9

75
.6

2
93

80
02

0
G

ar
ba

ge
9,

80
0.

79
39

,5
52

.0
0

29
,7

51
.2

1
75

.2
2

29
,1

02
.6

9
11

8,
01

8.
00

88
,9

15
.3

1
75

.3
4

93
99

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
56

,5
85

.0
5

10
4,

50
8.

00
47

,9
22

.9
5

45
.8

6
14

8,
19

5.
27

31
2,

90
4.

00
16

4,
70

8.
73

52
.6

4
93

99
99

0
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
94

00
00

0
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

94
10

01
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 -
  S

al
ar

ie
s

57
,1

81
.8

5
59

,2
66

.0
0

2,
08

4.
15

3.
52

15
1,

40
5.

10
17

7,
79

6.
00

26
,3

90
.9

0
14

.8
4

94
19

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

57
,1

81
.8

5
59

,2
66

.0
0

2,
08

4.
15

3.
52

15
1,

40
5.

10
17

7,
79

6.
00

26
,3

90
.9

0
14

.8
4

94
20

00
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

94
20

01
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 M
at

er
ia

ls
6,

80
6.

73
20

,9
81

.0
0

14
,1

74
.2

7
67

.5
6

15
,2

33
.9

0
63

,1
87

.0
0

47
,9

53
.1

0
75

.8
9

94
20

02
0

V
eh

ic
le

 -
 g

as
ol

in
e

89
2.

69
55

9.
00

-3
33

.6
9

-5
9.

69
2,

31
2.

12
1,

67
7.

00
-6

35
.1

2
-3

7.
87

94
20

03
0

Ja
ni

to
ria

ls
 S

up
pl

ie
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

2,
02

0.
37

0.
00

-2
,0

20
.3

7
N

/A
94

29
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

7,
69

9.
42

21
,5

40
.0

0
13

,8
40

.5
8

64
.2

6
19

,5
66

.3
9

64
,8

64
.0

0
45

,2
97

.6
1

69
.8

3
94

29
00

5
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

94
29

01
5

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 U
ni

t T
ur

na
ro

un
d

0.
00

4,
98

6.
00

4,
98

6.
00

10
0.

00
0.

00
10

,4
91

.0
0

10
,4

91
.0

0
10

0.
00

94
29

03
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 T
re

e 
T

rim
m

in
g

0.
00

83
4.

00
83

4.
00

10
0.

00
0.

00
2,

50
2.

00
2,

50
2.

00
10

0.
00

94
29

06
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 F
lo

or
 C

ov
er

in
g

6,
31

3.
25

6,
55

7.
00

24
3.

75
3.

72
12

,2
85

.0
0

19
,6

71
.0

0
7,

38
6.

00
37

.5
5

94
29

10
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3,

89
8.

97
12

,2
68

.0
0

8,
36

9.
03

68
.2

2
15

,9
85

.6
2

36
,8

04
.0

0
20

,8
18

.3
8

56
.5

7
94

30
01

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 P

ai
nt

in
g

0.
00

2,
97

2.
00

2,
97

2.
00

10
0.

00
11

,2
50

.0
0

9,
56

1.
00

-1
,6

89
.0

0
-1

7.
67

94
30

02
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 P
lu

m
bi

ng
14

5.
00

2,
56

4.
00

2,
41

9.
00

94
.3

4
14

5.
00

7,
69

2.
00

7,
54

7.
00

98
.1

1
94

30
03

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

, P
oo

l, 
P

on
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

2,
49

3.
02

11
,1

29
.0

0
8,

63
5.

98
77

.6
0

13
,1

80
.0

2
33

,3
87

.0
0

20
,2

06
.9

8
60

.5
2

94
30

04
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 H
V

A
C

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

0.
00

3,
16

3.
00

3,
16

3.
00

10
0.

00
38

7.
25

9,
48

9.
00

9,
10

1.
75

95
.9

2
94

30
06

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 E

le
va

to
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

0.
00

3,
33

7.
00

3,
33

7.
00

10
0.

00
5,

19
7.

48
10

,0
11

.0
0

4,
81

3.
52

48
.0

8
94

30
07

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 E

xt
er

m
in

at
io

n
57

0.
00

4,
24

7.
00

3,
67

7.
00

86
.5

8
3,

51
5.

00
12

,7
41

.0
0

9,
22

6.
00

72
.4

1
94

30
08

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

0.
00

2,
03

2.
00

2,
03

2.
00

10
0.

00
96

1.
93

6,
09

6.
00

5,
13

4.
07

84
.2

2
94

30
09

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 S

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 N

ur
se

 C
al

l S
ys

te
m

s
3,

23
7.

01
3,

48
7.

00
24

9.
99

7.
17

5,
40

3.
01

10
,4

61
.0

0
5,

05
7.

99
48

.3
5

94
30

11
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
 -

 G
ut

te
r 

C
le

an
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
0.

00
1,

33
9.

00
1,

33
9.

00
10

0.
00

0.
00

4,
01

7.
00

4,
01

7.
00

10
0.

00
94

30
12

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 F

lo
or

in
g 

R
ep

lm
t/

C
le

an
in

g 
Sr

vc
37

0.
00

0.
00

-3
70

.0
0

N
/A

2,
91

5.
00

0.
00

-2
,9

15
.0

0
N

/A
94

30
13

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 O

th
er

0.
00

4,
58

8.
00

4,
58

8.
00

10
0.

00
22

5.
00

13
,7

64
.0

0
13

,5
39

.0
0

98
.3

7
94

30
14

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 V

eh
ic

le
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
10

4.
52

58
8.

00
48

3.
48

82
.2

2
59

4.
07

1,
82

5.
00

1,
23

0.
93

67
.4

5
94

30
15

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

 -
 J

an
ito

ria
l

0.
00

14
,2

04
.0

0
14

,2
04

.0
0

10
0.

00
1,

68
0.

35
42

,6
12

.0
0

40
,9

31
.6

5
96

.0
6

94
39

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

17
,1

31
.7

7
78

,2
95

.0
0

61
,1

63
.2

3
78

.1
2

73
,7

24
.7

3
23

1,
12

4.
00

15
7,

39
9.

27
68

.1
0

94
50

00
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
94

50
01

0
M

ai
nt

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

  M
ed

ic
al

/D
en

ta
l

12
,3

42
.2

2
19

,3
14

.0
0

6,
97

1.
78

36
.1

0
36

,7
68

.6
9

57
,9

42
.0

0
21

,1
73

.3
1

36
.5

4
94

50
02

0
M

ai
nt

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 -

  P
E

R
S/

P
A

R
S

5,
16

7.
92

5,
88

1.
00

71
3.

08
12

.1
3

14
,8

98
.4

0
17

,6
35

.0
0

2,
73

6.
60

15
.5

2
94

50
03

0
M

ai
nt

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

   
F

IC
A

1,
45

7.
35

84
0.

00
-6

17
.3

5
-7

3.
49

4,
07

0.
73

2,
52

0.
00

-1
,5

50
.7

3
-6

1.
54

94
50

04
0

M
ai

nt
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  S

U
I

17
.7

6
21

4.
00

19
6.

24
91

.7
0

24
5.

58
63

5.
00

38
9.

42
61

.3
3

94
50

05
0

M
ai

nt
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
 L

ife
/L

T
D

39
2.

20
50

5.
00

11
2.

80
22

.3
4

1,
18

6.
10

1,
50

2.
00

31
5.

90
21

.0
3

94
50

07
0

M
ai

nt
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
 U

ni
fo

rm
s/

Sh
oe

s
26

4.
98

2,
01

3.
00

1,
74

8.
02

86
.8

4
35

4.
94

6,
04

5.
00

5,
69

0.
06

94
.1

3
94

50
09

1
M

ai
nt

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

it 
- 

W
C

3,
41

7.
54

2,
67

1.
00

-7
46

.5
4

-2
7.

95
9,

65
3.

92
8,

02
2.

00
-1

,6
31

.9
2

-2
0.

34
94

59
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
23

,0
59

.9
7

31
,4

38
.0

0
8,

37
8.

03
26

.6
5

67
,1

78
.3

6
94

,3
01

.0
0

27
,1

22
.6

4
28

.7
6

94
99

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
10

5,
07

3.
01

19
0,

53
9.

00
85

,4
65

.9
9

44
.8

5
31

1,
87

4.
58

56
8,

08
5.

00
25

6,
21

0.
42

45
.1

0
95

00
00

0
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
95

00
10

0
In

te
re

st
 E

xp
en

se
87

,5
51

.8
4

97
,8

07
.0

0
10

,2
55

.1
6

10
.4

9
26

1,
99

7.
48

29
3,

42
1.

00
31

,4
23

.5
2

10
.7

1
95

00
16

0
M

or
tg

ag
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

e
5,

01
7.

52
0.

00
-5

,0
17

.5
2

N
/A

15
,9

39
.5

7
0.

00
-1

5,
93

9.
57

N
/A

96
10

01
0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- 

W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
53

5.
08

0.
00

-5
35

.0
8

N
/A

1,
61

1.
88

0.
00

-1
,6

11
.8

8
N

/A
96

10
02

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- 
L

ia
bi

lit
y

5,
38

8.
05

4,
93

7.
00

-4
51

.0
5

-9
.1

4
16

,1
64

.2
3

14
,7

37
.0

0
-1

,4
27

.2
3

-9
.6

8
96

10
03

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- 
P

ro
pe

rt
y

8,
15

7.
56

12
,7

60
.0

0
4,

60
2.

44
36

.0
7

24
,1

80
.6

1
38

,1
07

.0
0

13
,9

26
.3

9
36

.5
5

96
10

04
0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- 

V
eh

ic
le

68
4.

13
1,

34
8.

00
66

3.
87

49
.2

5
2,

05
2.

22
4,

08
4.

00
2,

03
1.

78
49

.7
5

96
10

06
0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- 

O
th

er
7,

11
1.

48
1,

25
5.

00
-5

,8
56

.4
8

-4
66

.6
5

9,
92

2.
11

3,
76

5.
00

-6
,1

57
.1

1
-1

63
.5

4
96

98
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

11
4,

44
5.

66
11

8,
10

7.
00

3,
66

1.
34

3.
10

33
1,

86
8.

10
35

4,
11

4.
00

22
,2

45
.9

0
6.

28

 P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4

Page 51

Page 51 of 83



11
/8

/2
01

9 
4:

10
 P

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
P

er
io

d 
=

 J
ul

 2
01

9-
Se

p 
20

19
B

oo
k 

=
 A

cc
ru

al

96
99

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

87
1,

24
5.

62
1,

26
3,

46
6.

00
39

2,
22

0.
38

31
.0

4
2,

38
6,

02
6.

55
3,

78
4,

80
9.

00
1,

39
8,

78
2.

45
36

.9
6

97
00

00
0

M
O

D
 R

E
H

A
B

 A
N

D
 S

P
C

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
97

00
57

0
R

en
t t

o 
O

w
ne

rs
 -

 B
es

si
e 

C
ol

em
an

15
,0

18
.0

0
0.

00
-1

5,
01

8.
00

N
/A

46
,3

77
.0

0
0.

00
-4

6,
37

7.
00

N
/A

97
00

80
0

P
O

R
T

-I
n 

(A
/R

 B
ill

in
gs

)
-5

0,
05

7.
00

0.
00

50
,0

57
.0

0
N

/A
-8

7,
55

5.
00

0.
00

87
,5

55
.0

0
N

/A
97

00
90

0
T

O
T

A
L

 M
O

D
 R

E
H

A
B

 A
N

D
 S

P
C

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
-3

5,
03

9.
00

0.
00

35
,0

39
.0

0
N

/A
-4

1,
17

8.
00

0.
00

41
,1

78
.0

0
N

/A
97

10
00

0
E

X
T

R
A

O
R

D
IN

A
R

Y
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

97
10

09
0

P
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
os

t
0.

00
8,

33
3.

00
8,

33
3.

00
10

0.
00

0.
00

24
,9

99
.0

0
24

,9
99

.0
0

10
0.

00
97

13
00

1
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S 
(V

O
U

C
H

E
R

)
97

19
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 E
X

T
R

A
O

R
D

IN
A

R
Y

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
0.

00
8,

33
3.

00
8,

33
3.

00
10

0.
00

0.
00

24
,9

99
.0

0
24

,9
99

.0
0

10
0.

00
97

30
00

1
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S 
(V

O
U

C
H

E
R

)
97

30
01

0
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 -
 L

an
dl

or
ds

2,
59

0,
04

6.
00

2,
51

2,
02

2.
00

-7
8,

02
4.

00
-3

.1
1

7,
60

1,
85

0.
00

7,
53

6,
06

9.
00

-6
5,

78
1.

00
-0

.8
7

97
30

02
0

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 -

  F
SS

7,
18

3.
00

0.
00

-7
,1

83
.0

0
N

/A
19

,9
72

.0
0

0.
00

-1
9,

97
2.

00
N

/A
97

30
07

0
U

til
ity

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 to

 T
en

an
ts

1,
73

2.
00

0.
00

-1
,7

32
.0

0
N

/A
5,

50
3.

00
0.

00
-5

,5
03

.0
0

N
/A

97
39

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S 
(V

O
U

C
H

E
R

)
2,

59
8,

96
1.

00
2,

51
2,

02
2.

00
-8

6,
93

9.
00

-3
.4

6
7,

62
7,

32
5.

00
7,

53
6,

06
9.

00
-9

1,
25

6.
00

-1
.2

1

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

3,
43

5,
16

7.
62

3,
78

3,
82

1.
00

-3
48

,6
53

.3
8

-9
.2

1
9,

97
2,

17
3.

55
11

,3
45

,8
77

.0
0

-1
,3

73
,7

03
.4

5
-1

2.
11

N
E

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 B

E
F

O
R

E
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
45

7,
80

2.
06

17
4,

28
6.

00
28

3,
51

6.
06

16
2.

67
1,

71
2,

34
8.

11
66

5,
55

6.
00

1,
04

6,
79

2.
11

15
7.

28

97
39

50
0

O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

97
40

00
0

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
E

xp
en

se
15

8,
59

7.
00

11
9,

99
7.

00
-3

8,
60

0.
00

-3
2.

17
45

0,
69

9.
00

35
9,

99
1.

00
-9

0,
70

8.
00

-2
5.

20
98

59
99

9
T

O
T

A
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

15
8,

59
7.

00
11

9,
99

7.
00

-3
8,

60
0.

00
-3

2.
17

45
0,

69
9.

00
35

9,
99

1.
00

-9
0,

70
8.

00
-2

5.
20

99
96

00
0

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

3,
59

3,
76

4.
62

3,
90

3,
81

8.
00

31
0,

05
3.

38
7.

94
10

,4
22

,8
72

.5
5

11
,7

05
,8

68
.0

0
1,

28
2,

99
5.

45
10

.9
6

99
98

00
0

N
E

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
29

9,
20

5.
06

54
,2

89
.0

0
24

4,
91

6.
06

45
1.

13
1,

26
1,

64
9.

11
30

5,
56

5.
00

95
6,

08
4.

11
31

2.
89

 P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4

Page 52

Page 52 of 83



Budget Comparison (with PTD)
Period = Jul 2019-Sep 2019

Book = Accrual

2,959,975 

78,220 

462,291 

8,184,036 

11,684,522 

3,341,318 

111,654 

677,280 

7,881,181 

12,011,433 

TOTAL TENANT REVENUE

TOTAL FEDERAL GRANTS

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

TOTAL HUD GRANT

TOTAL REVENUE

AHA REVENUE ‐ ACTUAL VERSUS BUDGET (PTD)

 PTD Actual  PTD Budget

59,823 

41,111 

148,195 

556,571 

331,868 

1,474,664 

7,627,325 

9,972,174 

102,420 

77,085 

312,904 

1,041,869 

354,114 

2,345,936 

7,536,069 

11,345,877 

TOTAL TENANT/SOCIAL SERVICES/POLICE

TOTAL TENANT SERVICES

TOTAL UTILITIES

TOTAL MAINTENANCE, MATERIALS & SALARIES

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE

TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS (VOUCHER)

TOTAL EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER EXPENSES

AHA EXPENSE ‐ ACTUAL VERSUS BUDGET (PTD)

 PTD Actual  PTD Budget

Page 53

Page 53 of 83



 

                                                                                                           
 

To:  Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Vanessa M. Cooper, Executive Director 
 
Date:  November 20, 2019 
 
Re:   Accept an update on the Alameda City Council Referral from October 15, 

2019 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On October 15, 2019, the City Council discussed a referral made by Council Members 
Oddie and Vella to “Consider Directing Staff to Present Options to the Council on 
Increasing Accountability of, and Addressing Potential Conflict of Interest Issues at, the 
Alameda Housing Authority.”  
 
The full memo, minutes and video recording of the meeting can be found on the City’s 
website: 
https://www.alamedaca.gov/GOVERNMENT/Agendas-Minutes-Announcements.  
 
During the meeting, Executive Director Cooper gave a presentation on the 
achievements, responsibilities and accountability of the Alameda Housing Authority 
(AHA). A number of AHA staff members, a Commissioner and members of the public 
spoke at the meeting. Staff and General Counsel answered the Council Members’ 
questions.   
 
Executive Director Cooper explained the various methods of grievance and appeal 
available to tenants and Section 8 participants. She added that AHA cannot comment 
on specific tenant information in public, in the press, or to a third party without a release 
of information signed by the tenant. Executive Director Cooper conveyed that, as a 
result, the public may have an incomplete picture of the circumstances.  
 
During the meeting, the City Manager recommended, in response to the Council referral 
about the Housing Authority, starting an informal stakeholder group, which could decide 
whether or not a more formalized group is needed. He stated that the group will focus on 
“transparency, accountability, conflict of interest, hearing officers and informal mediation 
methodology, with a deadline of returning to Council February 18, 2020”. This was 
approved by the Council. 
 
A number of additional issues were raised during the Council meeting, including the need 
for more code enforcement services, a proposed City-wide task force on housing issues 
related to older adults and an offer by Executive Director Cooper for AHA to engage in 

Page 54

Page 54 of 83

https://www.alamedaca.gov/GOVERNMENT/Agendas-Minutes-Announcements


Honorable Chair and  November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3 
 

                                                                                                           
 

mediation with Alameda Renters Coalition (ARC), facilitated by a third party mediator from 
SEEDS. One council member additionally directed City staff to review opportunities for 
the City to provide financial incentives to facilitate lease up of Section 8 units in a highly 
competitive and tight private rental market.  
 
A verbal update was also provided by Staff in the September Board meeting. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
To date, City staff has not provided further information about convening the informal 
stakeholder group. An initial meeting has been set with the City Manager for early 
December to discuss further. AHA staff provided City staff with some initial legal 
information in response to their questions about HUD regulations. 
 
It is important to note that any policy suggestions made by an informal stakeholder group 
would need to be reviewed by General Counsel, approved by HUD (where it impacts a 
HUD-required process or HUD-funded payment) and would need to be discussed and 
approved by the Board of Commissioners in a public meeting. Where the proposed 
change(s) require a Significant Amendment to AHA’s Administrative Plan, a HUD-
accepted document, and/or Five Year Plan, a HUD-approved document, a public posting 
and hearing process would also be needed.  
 
AHA staff will return to the Board in January 2020 with an update. In the meantime, AHA 
staff continues to update its processes and procedures and to provide training and 
direction to staff.   
 
AHA has reached out to ARC regarding AHA’s offer to engage in mediation, but they have 
declined. Starting in January 2020, AHA will hold quarterly informational meetings with 
the local non-profits that provide free legal and advocacy services to tenants in Alameda, 
and ARC will be invited. This regular meeting will offer an opportunity to discuss new 
policies and agency processes and will not address any individual cases.  Any changes 
to AHA’s existing policies would need to come back to the Board for review and approval.   
 
Staff is preparing a set of handouts for Commissioners and Council Members, so that 
they can direct AHA tenants and Section 8 participants to the proper channels when 
approached with concerns or questions. The packet will include information on whom to 
contact for services and complaints; the release of information form; details of available 
social services; a flow chart of the appeals processes; and information on translation, 
reasonable accommodations (under ADA), and free legal services.  
 
In terms of the Older Adults Task Force, the Board of Commissioners first raised this 
issue in September, as part of the 2019-20 goals for the Executive Director. At this time, 
there is clear interest among the Council Members, AHA staff, and a Commissioner to 
convene such a group. The group would address, among other issues, how to provide a 
dignified and affordable transition for older Alamedans from independent living to a higher 
level of service. Housekeeping and hoarding will also be covered, as our experience 
indicates these may be precursors of a tenant’s need for additional assistance and 

Page 55

Page 55 of 83



Page 56

Page 56 of 83



Page 57

Page 57 of 83



Page 58

Page 58 of 83



 

                                                                                                           

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:       Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Senior Management Analyst 

 
Date: September 18, 2019 
 
Re:  Approve Revised Payment Standard Increases for the Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher program and for Project Based Vouchers effective December 
2, 2019 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
HUD is required to annually review and publish Fair Market Rents (FMRs).  Under the 
new regulations, HUD’s proposed FMRs are published in the Federal Register, with an 
effective date of 30 days after the date of publication and Housing Authorities have 3 
months to revise the payment standard. A payment standard is the maximum amount of 
subsidy that AHA can pay to an owner on behalf of a voucher holder. 
 
Fair Market Rents (FMRs) are primarily used to determine payment standard amounts for 
the Housing Choice Voucher program, to determine initial renewal rents for some expiring 
project-based Section 8 contracts, to determine initial rents for housing assistance 
payment (HAP) contracts in the Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 
program (Mod Rehab), and to serve as a rent ceiling in the HOME rental assistance 
program.  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) annually 
estimates FMRs for Office of Management and Budget (OMB) defined metropolitan 
areas, some HUD defined subdivisions of OMB metropolitan areas and each 
nonmetropolitan county. HUD requires Housing Authorities to set Payment Standards 
between 90% and 110% of the FMR. 
 
The following is a table showing the FMRs from last year and approved for this current 
year.   
 

Bedroom 0 1 2 3 4 

2019 FMR $1,409 $1,706 $2,126 $2,925 $3,587

2020 FMR $1,488 $1,808 $2,239 $3,042 $3,720

 
  
 

Enclosure: September 18, 2019 Payment Standard Memo Page 59

Page 59 of 83



Honorable Chair and                                  September 18, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners   Page 2 of 3 

 

                                                                                                           
 

DISCUSSION 
 
When the FMRs were released on August 30 2019, Housing Authorities had until 
September 30, 2019 to submit a comment to the notice if a rent study would be conducted.  
The Housing Authority decided not to submit a comment and allow the Payment 
Standards to become effective October 1, 2019.  Other Housing Authorities in the area 
made the same determination.     

 
Earlier this year, the Housing Authority had to decrease the Housing Choice Voucher 
payment standards due to a decrease in the FMR for 2019, and at the same time, the 
payment standards for the Project-Based Voucher (PBV) program were set at the same 
leave as the HCV payment standards.  Staff is recommending an increase in both 
payment standards to the same levels; however, AHA staff does reserve the right to return 
to separate payment standards in the future should the need arise.  Staff is recommending 
to leave the 4- and 5-bedroom units at the current level.  This is the same as was effective 
on October 2, 2016 for the HCV payment standard.  In order to improve lease-up 
opportunities for searching voucher holders, staff is recommending increasing the 1-, 2-, 
and 3-bedroom to 109% of FMR.  This would also allow landlords to request rent 
increases for current units.   
 
If the payment standard recommendation is approved, the new payment standards would 
go into effect December 2, 2019 for new admissions and transfers within the Housing 
Choice Voucher and Project-Based Voucher. PBV contracts would be affected based on 
their renewal date as these complexes are only able to change rent pricing at the contract 
anniversary date.  HCV households experiencing annual recertifications would have the 
new payment standards applied at the time of their annual.  When a payment standard 
decreases, the lower payment standard is not applied at the annual recertification for a 
couple of years, but since the decrease was effective June 2, 2019, the only families 
affected by the lower payment standard were new move-ins or transfers.   
Below is a chart of the new payment standards. 
 
HCV and PBV Proposed Payment Standards: 
 

Unit Bedroom Proposed Percentage of FMR 
Studio $1,578 106.05%
1 Bedroom $1,988 109.96%
2 Bedroom $2,462 109.96%
3 Bedroom $3,346 109.99%
4 Bedroom $3,824 102.80%
5 Bedroom $4,397 102.78%

 
 
 
 
  

Enclosure: September 18, 2019 Payment Standard Memo Page 60

Page 60 of 83



Enclosure: September 18, 2019 Payment Standard Memo Page 61

Page 61 of 83



Page 62

Page 62 of 83



Page 63

Page 63 of 83



Page 64

Page 64 of 83



Page 65

Page 65 of 83



Page 66

Page 66 of 83



67
 o

f 7
5

Page 67

Page 67 of 83

kmertz
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



68
 o

f 7
5

Page 68

Page 68 of 83



O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

J

T

J

T

J

T

 

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

U

S

D

U

S

D

U

S

D

U

S

D

U

S

D

U

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

T

S

D

EV

U

P

T

R

A

S

H

M

A

N

A

G

E

R

±

4

0

0

 

S

F

C

A

S

E

M

A

N

A

G

E

M

E

N

T

±

4

0

0

 

S

F

F

I

T

N

E

S

S

±

5

5

0

 

S

F

L

A

U

N

D

R

Y

±

3

8

0

 

S

F

M

A

I

L

 

A

R

E

A

P

R

O

P

.

M

G

M

T
S

T

O

R

.

±

2

5

0

 

S

F

U

P

P

U

B

L

I

C

R

E

S

T

R

O

O

M

S

C

O

M

P

U

T

E

R

 

L

A

B

±

5

2

5

 

S

F

M

A

I

N

T

.

S

H

O

P

/

O

F

F

I

C

E

±

3

6

5

 

S

F

C

O

M

M

U

N

I

T

Y

R

O

O

M

±

1

3

2

5

 

S

F

B

I

K

E

R

O

O

M

±

5

0

0

 

S

F

U

T

L

/
S

T

O

R

.

O

P

E

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

±

3

2

0

0

 

S

F

E

V

A

 

O

N

L

Y

M

I

T

C

H

E

L

L

 

A

V

E

5

T

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

T

R

A

S

H

L

A

U

N

D

R

Y

±

3

8

0

 

S

F

M

G

M

T
S

T

O

R

.

2

5

0

 

S

F

U

T

L

/

S

T

O

R

.

2

3

0

 

S

F

U

P

U

P

A
r
c
h

i
t
e
c
t
u

r
e
 
+

 
P

l
a
n

n
i
n

g

8
8
8
.
4
5
6
.
5
8
4
9

k
t
g
y
.
c
o
m

A
l
a

m
e

d
a

 
L

a
n

d
i
n

g
 
W

a
t
e

r
f
r
o

n
t
-
B

a
y

 
3

7

A
L
A

M
E

D
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
1
9

N
T

S

S
P

1
.
0

A
H

A
 
S

I
T

E
 
S

T
U

D
Y

(
F

O
R

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L
 
U

S
E

 
O

N
L
Y

)

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
L
E

V
E

L

L
E

V
E

L
S

 
2

-
4

Page 69

Page 69 of 83

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

kmertz
Text Box

kmertz
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



A
r
c

h
i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
+

 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

8
8

8
.
4

5
6

.
5

8
4

9

k
t
g

y
.
c
o

m

A
l
a
m

e
d

a
 
L

a
n

d
i
n

g
 
W

a
t
e
r
f
r
o

n
t
-
B

a
y
 
3
7

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
,
 
C

A
L

I
F

O
R

N
I
A

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 
3

0
,
 
2

0
1

9
S

P
 
2

.
0

.
0

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

0
5
0

1
0
0

2
5

Page 70

Page 70 of 83

kmertz
Pencil

kmertz
Pencil



Alameda Housing Authority - Alameda Landing - 4% with State credits/CalHFA MIP 11/8/2019  

1
2
3
4
5
6
11
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116

A B C D F G H I
Alameda Landing 

Sources of Funds TOTAL
const period

Perm Loan - tenant, not Sec 8 10,824,700 5.00%
Section 8 Tranche B loan 0 5.00%
CalHFA Subordinate Debt 2,280,000
Master Developer Equity 675,000 675,000
Deferred Developer Fee 0
GP equity 1,000 net dev fee from dev sources: 4,043,245
Investor Capital Contributions 19,543,755 1,954,376

Construction period costs 29,204,055
TOTAL SOURCES 33,324,455 2,629,376 funds available (incl 10% equity) 2,629,376

construction loan 26,574,679
Construction loan 26,574,679 5.00%
(needs taxable tail for amt over CDLAC max 18 mo const + 6
Surplus/(GAP) 0

Construction 50% test
USES OF FUNDS TOTAL COST BASIS 4% CREDIT Period Costs basis + land 31,085,876

tax exempt loan 26,574,679
LAND COST/ACQUISITION 85.49%
Acquisitiion - land  value per appraisal 0 0 0
Acquisiton - buildings to be kept/rehabbed 0 0
Environmental Remediation 0 0
Soil liquifaction remediation 0 0
Legal & Closing Costs 40,000 40,000
Total Land Cost or Value 0 max bond per cdlac 25,630,000
TRANSFER TAX 40,000 40,000
Off-Site Improvements and demo 0 0 0 Costs of Bond Issuance 26,574,679
Total Acquisition Cost 80,000 80,000 CalHFA issuer
NEW CONSTRUCTION bank counsel const and perm 50,000
Site Work 500,000 500,000 500,000 bond counsel 50,000
Structures 18,230,088 18,230,088 18,230,088 CDLAC fees and CDIAC fees 13,287
PV system? issuer fees 46,575
General Requirements 936,504 936,504 936,504 issuer app/legal 10,000
Contractor Overhead 749,204 749,204 749,204 issuer monitoring - 24 months 22,146
Contractor Profit 749,204 749,204 749,204 construction loan fee @ .75% 199,310
Total New Construction Cost 21,165,000 21,165,000 const lender costs 50,000
ARCHITECTURAL FEES perm loan fee 1% 108,247
Design 650,000 650,000 650,000 subdebt fee 1% 22,800
Supervision 250,000 250,000 250,000 subdebt legal 15,000
Total Architectural Costs 4.25% 900,000 900,000 title 65,000
Survey and Engineering 300,000 300,000 300,000 consultant 10,000
CONSTR. INTEREST & FEES legal costs for bond closing 30,000
Const. Loan Interest 1,760,572 1,096,206 1,760,572 TOTAL 692,365
predev loan costs 0 0 0
Construction loan fee and expenses - add $15k County inspe in COI 0 0 0
Taxes 50,000 50,000 50,000
Insurance 175,000 175,000 175,000
Title and Recording in COI 0 0 0
Total Construction Interest and Fees 1,985,572 1,985,572
PERMANENT FINANCING 664,367
Loan Fees @1% in COI 0 0
Costs of Bond Issuance 692,365 692,365
Title and Recording 5,000
legal 5,000
County loan fee 0 0
Total Permanent Financing Costs 702,365 692,365
LEGAL FEES
Lender Legal Costs Paid by Applicant 50,000 50,000
Other - Owner Legal 75,000 75,000 75,000
Total Attorney Costs 125,000 125,000
RESERVES
Capitalized Operating Reserve - 6 mo 566,156
Capitalized Replacement Reserve 0
Transition reserve - if required by HCD and/or investor 0
Total Reserve Costs 566,156 0
Total Appraisal Costs 20,000 20,000 20,000
Total Construction Contingency Costs 5.00% 1,058,250 1,058,250 1,058,250
OTHER
Tax Credit App./Alloc./Monitoring fees 35,692 35,692
Construction management / prevailing wage monitoring 230,000 230,000 230,000
PNA consultant 0 0 0
security 80,000 80,000 80,000
Enviro reports 85,000 85,000 85,000
Local Development Impact Fees 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Permit Processing Fees 496,176 496,176 496,176
Market Study 15,000 15,000
Marketing & Lease up 70,000 70,000
Relocation 0 0 0
Furnishings 60,000 60,000 60,000
Soft Cost Contingency 171,000 171,000 171,000
Total Other Costs 2,242,867 2,242,867

Total Project Cost 29,145,211 26,961,631 28,569,055
DEVELOPER COSTS
Developer Overhead/Profit 4,044,245 4,044,245 500,000
Consultant/Processing Agent 0
Project Administration
Broker Fees paid by owner
Construction Management Oversight
Other
Total Developer Costs 4,044,245 4,044,245 500,000

TOTAL PROJECT COST 33,189,455 31,005,876 29,069,055
Syndication Costs
Legal - Syndication/Organization 55,000 55,000
Audit 30,000 30,000
Consultant - Syndication (+$10K in COI) 50,000 50,000
Bridge Loan Interest 0 0
Total Syndication Costs 135,000 135,000
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS INCL. SYNDICATION 33,324,455 31,005,876 29,204,055

Page 71

Page 71 of 83

kmertz
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



Alameda Housing Authority - Alameda Landing - 4% with State credits/CalHFA MIP 11/8/2019  

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

P Q R S T U V W X Y Z
Alameda County

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 
 

Tenant Income Monthly Total 2019 RENTS
Rent Total Total Utility Gross Annual Max 

Unit Size # of Units Charged Monthly Annual Allowance Rents Gross Rents TC rents
0BR 20% ami 0 382 0 0 52 434 0 434
0BR 50% ami 5 1,033 5,165 61,980 52 1,085 5,425 1,085
0BR 60% ami 0 1,250 0 0 52 1,302 0 1,302
0BR 80% ami 3 1,684 5,052 60,624 52 1,736 5,208 1,736
0BR 100% ami 1 2,118 2,118 25,416 52 2,170 2,170 2,170
1BR 20% ami 0 407 0 0 58 465 0 465
1BR 50% ami 9 1,104 9,936 119,232 58 1,162 10,458 1,162
1BR 60% ami 4 1,337 5,348 64,176 58 1,395 5,580 1,395
1BR 80% ami 2 1,802 3,604 43,248 58 1,860 3,720 1,860
1BR 100% ami 5 2,266 11,330 135,960 58 2,324 11,620 2,324
2BR 20% ami 0 485 0 0 73 558 0 558
2BR 50% ami 3 1,322 3,966 47,592 73 1,395 4,185 1,395
2BR 60% ami 1 1,601 1,601 19,212 73 1,674 1,674 1,674
2BR 80% ami 2 2,159 4,318 51,816 73 2,232 4,464 2,232
2BR 100% ami 8 2,717 21,736 260,832 73 2,790 22,320 2,790
3BR 20% ami 0 556 0 0 88 644 0 644
3BR 50% ami 4 1,523 6,092 73,104 88 1,611 6,444 1,611
3BR 60% ami 0 1,845 0 0 88 1,933 0 1,933
3BR 80% ami 3 2,490 7,470 89,640 88 2,578 7,734 2,578
3BR 100% ami 7 3,134 21,938 263,256 88 3,222 22,554 3,222

Manager - 2BR 1 0 0 0
Totals 58 109,674 1,316,088
Laundry 5  /unit/ month 3,480 AMI Distribution Unit Distribution
vacancy 5% -65,978 50% ami 21 36.84% Studio 9 15.52%
EGI from tenant rents 1,253,590 60% ami 5 8.77% 1BR 20 34.48%

80% ami 10 17.54% 2BR 15 25.86%
Section 8 income 0  100% ami 21 36.84% 3BR 14 24.14%

 # units pmt standard diff 57   58
0BR 20% ami 0 1,549 1,115 0
1BR 20% ami 0 1,876 1,411 0
1BR 50% ami 0 1,876 481 0
1BR 80% ami 0 1,876 16 0
2BR 20% ami 0 2,338 1,780 0
2BR 50% ami 0 2,338 943 0
2BR 80% ami 0 2,338 106 0
3BR 20% ami 0 3,217 2,573 0
3BR 50% ami 0 3,217 1,606 0 Avg affordability 74.56%  
3BR 60% ami 0 3,217 1,284 0 LIHTC ONLY 59.72%
3BR 80% ami 0 3,217 639 0
Totals 0 0
vacancy on Sec 8 5% 0
EGI from Section 8 increment 0

TOTAL PROJECT EGI 1,253,590
Operating expenses 7,000 per unit per year 406,000
Services coordinator 0 0
County monitoring fee 0 per unit 0
Bond issuer monitoring fee - CalHFA 7,500
NET OPERATING INCOME 840,090

Debt Service - First 697,312
Debt Service - Sec 8 loan 0
CalHFA .35% debt service 7,980
Operating Reserve 0
Replacement Reserve 500 per unit 29,000
Excess Cash 105,798

1.15
Supportable debt from tenant income -- NO SEC 8 10,824,700

Amortization 30 5.00% 1.15

Supportable debt from Section 8 0
30 5.00% 1.15

Page 72

Page 72 of 83



 

                                                                                                           

 
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:      Janet Basta, Director of Human Resources and Operations  

 
Date: November 20, 2019 
 
Re:  Report to the Board of Commissioners on the 2019 Compensation Study of 

Exempt Positions and Adopt the corresponding Resolution to Adopt a Revised 
Pay Schedule 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Housing Authority periodically completes compensation studies to ensure it remains 
competitive in the marketplace. Following separation from the City of Alameda in 2012, 
Koff and Associates, a human resources consulting firm, was engaged to perform an 
initial classification and compensation study of all current and proposed positions, 
resulting in new job descriptions, and a salary schedule and schedule of authorized 
positions that were approved retroactive to January 1, 2013. A second compensation 
study was completed of all positions in 2016, also by Koff; that study resulted in a wage 
change for one position, which was subsequently incorporated into the schedule of 
authorized positions in January 2017. Additionally, limited scope studies have been 
completed periodically as new positions have been developed or there is indication from 
the market that certain positions need to be re-benchmarked to remain competitive for 
recruitment and/or retention purposes.  
 
In late 2018, Ralph Andersen & Associates, a human resources consulting firm with 
expertise in conducting public sector compensation studies, was engaged to complete a 
compensation (salary and benefits) study for the Director level positions. The results of 
that study were presented to the Board of Commissioners in February, and a revised pay 
schedule was subsequently approved and implemented. 
 
The next phase of the compensation study focused on positions classified as exempt; the 
results of that study are presented here. A study of non-exempt positions is underway, 
and is scheduled to be completed and presented to the Board in early 2020. Ralph 
Andersen & Associates was engaged to complete both of the follow-up studies. 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Page 73 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 2 of 4 
 

                                                                                                           

DISCUSSION 
 
It is prudent to review compensation levels every three to four years, dependent on market 
conditions. Management positions are particularly impacted at the present time, due to 
the increasing number of public employees that are nearing retirement, which increases 
competition with other public sector agencies for knowledgeable, experienced staff when 
retirements occur. Additionally, high housing costs, lengthy commutes, and a generally 
tight job market all add to the challenge of attracting and retaining management staff. 
 
Compensation plans should ensure that salaries/benefits remain competitive in the 
marketplace and support the Agency in attracting and retaining well-qualified employees, 
as well as providing a defensible and rational basis for compensating employees that is 
consistent with public practices. Similar to the Director study, this compensation study 
included a review and analysis of both salary and benefits data. Past studies found that 
while AHA salaries were generally at market levels, benefits lag behind, particularly for 
management (exempt) positions, where many competing agencies offer 
management/administrative leave and some offer more robust retirement formulas, 
contributions, or post-employment health benefits. Additionally, the majority of public 
agencies participate in social security, while AHA does not, which can be a consideration 
for experienced candidates considering a change of employment. 
 
The same methodology used for the Director study was employed for the current study. 
Twelve public agencies were identified to participate in the survey. Comparable positions 
at each agency were identified using criteria such as core functional duties, 
education/skills requirements, level of duties, and the scope of supervisory and 
management duties. All identified agencies participated, though it is noted that not all 
positions had positions of comparable class in all agencies. Data was collected from the 
comparator agencies on monthly base salaries as well as other cash supplements and 
the full range of benefits provided to employees. 
 
The same agencies were used in the compensation survey that were used in the Director 
survey, as follows: 
  

Oakland Housing Authority City of Alameda 
City of San Mateo City of Oakland 
San Francisco Housing Authority City of San Francisco 
Santa Clara Housing Authority City of San Jose 
Contra Costa Housing Authority San Mateo County 
Alameda County Alameda County Housing Authority 

 
 
Total compensation (salaries and benefits) data was gathered from the comparator 
agencies and analyzed by the consultant against various percentile levels, rather than 
against mean (average) levels which is not recommended for data sets of less than thirty 
agencies. Three levels of percentiles were reviewed and presented in the report:  

Page 74

Page 74 of 83



Honorable Chair and   November 20, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 3 of 4 
 

                                                                                                           

1. Median (50th percentile), which reflects a ranking of the data at the middle of the 
data set; half of the data is above the median and half is below 

2. 60th percentile, which reflects a ranking level where 60% of the data set is below 
the data point, and 40% is above the data point 

3. 75th percentile, which reflects a ranking level where 75% of the data set is below 
the data point, and 25% is above the data point 

 
All positions, with the exception of the Management Analyst position, were found to be 
below the average at the 50th percentile (median), which was the level of comparison 
adopted by the Board in approving the wage range placement and corresponding Pay 
Schedule for Director positions.  
 
Exhibit 1 contains the recommended placement for each position at the 50th percentile 
level in AHA’s salary schedule, which shows all ranges currently available, whether or not 
any positions are currently assigned to a specific level. The salary schedule currently 
contains 60 possible wage ranges. Recommended salary ranges for individual positions 
are based on a combination of market data and an analysis of internal relationships, 
including ensuring a minimum of a 10-15% differential between supervisor and 
subordinate classes. 
 
Management further recommends that the salary levels of individual existing exempt staff 
be adjusted to the new wage range at the beginning of the next pay period (November 
24, 2019), but that those adjustments be made to a step in the new range that ensures a 
minimum of a 5% increase to current salary, rather than moving staff to the same step on 
the new range that they hold in the current range. This was the approach utilized for 
implementation of the Director study, and allows for more moderate increases at the 
present time, while allowing for salary growth in the wage range over the next several 
years for staff not yet at the top step in their assigned range who perform satisfactorily. 
The one exception to this approach is for Management Analyst staff, due to that position 
being slightly above the median in the study results. It is recommended that staff in this 
position be moved to the new assigned range, but at the same step they currently hold, 
resulting in a 2.5% increase rather than a minimum of 5% increase.  
 
A copy of the Compensation Report may be requested if more in-depth information is 
desired. Paper copies of the Report will also be available at the November 20, 2019 Board 
of Commissioners meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT     
 
The cost to grant the recommended changes to existing exempt salaries is approximately 
$50,250 for the balance of the current fiscal year, including AHA’s pension contributions. 
Additionally, exempt positions currently open (Risk Manager and Communications 
Manager) will be hired at a step in the assigned wage range (42) identified in the study. 
These positions were initially benchmarked to the Senior Management Analyst wage 
range (37); the recommended range for both positions, based on the compensation 
survey, is 42. Adjusting these positions to the new range will add approximately $18,606 

Page 75

Page 75 of 83



Page 76

Page 76 of 83



R
al

ph
 A

nd
er

se
n 

& 
As

so
ci

at
es

Al
am

ed
a 

C
ity

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
Sa

la
ry

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

; M
ar

ke
t B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

C
la

ss
es

 s
et

 to
 M

ar
ke

t M
ed

ia
n 

(5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e)

To
ta

l C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
M

ar
ke

t D
ev

ia
tio

n

Line

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
R

an
ge

   
   

  C
ur

re
nt

 
R

an
ge

 M
ax

M
ar

ke
t 

D
ev

ia
tio

n
R

ec
om

m
. 

R
an

ge
R

ec
om

m
. 

M
ax

.
Pe

rc
en

t 
C

ha
ng

e
In

te
rn

al
 A

lig
nm

en
t/S

al
ar

y 
Se

tti
ng

 R
at

io
na

le

1
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

na
ly

st
37

10
,8

69
$ 

   
42

$1
2,

27
6

12
.9

%
Sa

m
e 

as
 S

en
io

r P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

2
Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

37
10

,8
69

$ 
   

 -1
1.

6%
42

$1
2,

27
6

12
.9

%
Be

nc
hm

ar
k;

 s
et

 to
 m

ar
ke

t
3

C
on

tro
lle

r
36

10
,6

04
$ 

   
42

$1
2,

27
6

15
.8

%
Sa

m
e 

as
 S

en
io

r P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

4 5
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

--
N

ew
42

$1
2,

27
6

-- 
 S

am
e 

as
 C

on
tro

lle
r

6
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 M

an
ag

er
--

N
ew

42
$1

2,
27

6
-- 

 S
am

e 
as

 C
on

tro
lle

r
7 8

As
se

t M
an

ag
er

33
9,

85
9

$ 
   

  
35

$1
0,

35
2

5.
0%

Sa
m

e 
as

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

9
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

33
9,

85
9

$ 
   

  
 -4

.7
%

35
$1

0,
35

2
5.

0%
Be

nc
hm

ar
k;

 s
et

 to
 m

ar
ke

t
10 11

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

na
ly

st
32

9,
61

8
$ 

   
  

 +
1.

9%
33

$9
,8

59
2.

5%
Be

nc
hm

ar
k;

 s
et

 to
 m

ar
ke

t
12

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
Su

pe
rv

is
or

26
8,

30
9

$ 
   

  
33

$9
,8

59
18

.7
%

Sa
m

e 
as

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

na
ly

st
13

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
up

er
vi

so
r

26
8,

30
9

$ 
   

  
33

$9
,8

59
18

.7
%

Sa
m

e 
as

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

na
ly

st
14

Pr
op

er
ty

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

up
er

vi
so

r
26

8,
30

9
$ 

   
  

33
$9

,8
59

18
.7

%
Sa

m
e 

as
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
64

SC
S*

 - 
Sa

m
e 

as
 C

ur
re

nt
 S

al
ar

y
1

Pr
in

t D
at

e:
 1

1/
8/

20
19

Page 77

Page 77 of 83



Ex
hi

bi
t 2

Po
si

tio
nT

itl
e

Sa
la

ry
 

R
an

ge
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e
St

ep
 1

St
ep

 2
St

ep
 3

St
ep

 4
St

ep
 5

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
8

7/
1/

20
19

4,
40

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
62

7
$ 

   
   

  
4,

85
8

$ 
   

   
  

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

 
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
   

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
12

7/
1/

20
19

4,
85

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

  
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
   

H
ou

si
ng

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

14
7/

1/
20

19
5,

10
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

  
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
 

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
I**

**
14

7/
1/

20
19

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
35

5
$ 

   
   

  
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
  

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

 
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

15
7/

1/
20

19
5,

22
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

49
0

$ 
   

   
  

5,
76

4
$ 

   
   

  
6,

05
2

$ 
   

   
 

6,
35

5
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
I

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
  

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
 

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
R

en
t S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
  

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
 

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t
18

7/
1/

20
19

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

  
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
  

6,
50

9
$ 

   
   

 
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

II*
**

*
20

7/
1/

20
19

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
  

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

 
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
   

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
As

si
st

an
t

22
7/

1/
20

19
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
  

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

  
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
 

7,
53

7
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II

24
7/

1/
20

19
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
  

7,
17

7
$ 

   
   

  
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
 

7,
91

3
$ 

   
   

   
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r

28
7/

1/
20

19
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
  

7,
91

3
$ 

   
   

  
8,

30
9

$ 
   

   
 

8,
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

op
er

ty
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
up

er
vi

so
r

33
11

/2
4/

20
19

8,
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
51

6
$ 

   
   

  
8,

94
2

$ 
   

   
  

9,
38

9
$ 

   
   

 
9,

85
9

$ 
   

   
   

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
Su

pe
rv

is
or

33
11

/2
4/

20
19

8,
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
51

6
$ 

   
   

  
8,

94
2

$ 
   

   
  

9,
38

9
$ 

   
   

 
9,

85
9

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (a
ka

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s)
 S

up
er

vi
so

r
33

11
/2

4/
20

19
8,

11
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

51
6

$ 
   

   
  

8,
94

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
 

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

   
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
na

ly
st

33
7/

1/
20

19
8,

11
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

51
6

$ 
   

   
  

8,
94

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
 

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

35
11

/2
4/

20
19

8,
51

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
94

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
  

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

 
10

,3
52

$ 
   

   
 

As
se

t M
an

ag
er

35
11

/2
4/

20
19

8,
51

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
94

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
  

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

 
10

,3
52

$ 
   

   
 

C
on

tro
lle

r
42

11
/2

4/
20

19
10

,0
99

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
$ 

   
   

11
,1

34
$ 

   
   

11
,6

91
$ 

   
  

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 M

an
ag

er
42

11
/2

4/
20

19
10

,0
99

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
$ 

   
   

11
,1

34
$ 

   
   

11
,6

91
$ 

   
  

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

42
11

/2
4/

20
19

10
,0

99
$ 

   
   

  
10

,6
04

$ 
   

   
11

,1
34

$ 
   

   
11

,6
91

$ 
   

  
12

,2
76

$ 
   

   
 

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
42

11
/2

4/
20

19
10

,0
99

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
$ 

   
   

11
,1

34
$ 

   
   

11
,6

91
$ 

   
  

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

na
ly

st
42

11
/2

4/
20

19
10

,0
99

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
$ 

   
   

11
,1

34
$ 

   
   

11
,6

91
$ 

   
  

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s
50

7/
1/

20
19

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

  
12

,8
90

$ 
   

   
13

,5
34

$ 
   

   
14

,2
11

$ 
   

  
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ro
pe

rty
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

50
7/

1/
20

19
12

,2
76

$ 
   

   
  

12
,8

90
$ 

   
   

13
,5

34
$ 

   
   

14
,2

11
$ 

   
  

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f R
en

t S
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
50

7/
1/

20
19

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

  
12

,8
90

$ 
   

   
13

,3
54

$ 
   

   
14

,2
11

$ 
   

  
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

R
 a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

54
7/

1/
20

19
13

,5
34

$ 
   

   
  

14
,2

11
$ 

   
   

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

15
,6

67
$ 

   
  

16
,4

50
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

54
7/

1/
20

19
13

,5
34

$ 
   

   
  

14
,2

11
$ 

   
   

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

15
,6

67
$ 

   
  

16
,4

50
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

56
7/

1/
20

19
14

,2
11

$ 
   

   
  

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

15
,6

67
$ 

   
   

16
,4

50
$ 

   
  

17
,2

73
$ 

   
   

 
D

ep
ut

y 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

60
7/

1/
20

19
15

,6
67

$ 
   

   
  

16
,4

50
$ 

   
   

17
,2

73
$ 

   
   

18
,1

37
$ 

   
  

19
,0

43
$ 

   
   

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

**
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
22

,3
13

$ 
   

   
  

23
,4

28
$ 

   
   

R
es

id
en

t M
an

ag
er

 II
**

*, 
**

**
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
$ 

28
.9

9/
ho

ur
R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
 *,

 **
*, 

**
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
13

.9
3/

ho
ur

$1
8.

58
/h

ou
r

As
si

st
an

t R
es

id
en

t M
an

ag
er

**
*

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
13

.9
3/

ho
ur

*T
w

o 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

as
si

gn
ed

 d
ut

ie
s

**
*R

es
id

en
t a

nd
 R

es
id

en
t C

us
to

di
an

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
pa

id
 a

 fl
at

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
; n

o 
ra

ng
e 

is
 a

pp
lie

d
**

**
In

di
ca

te
s 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 4

0 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k;
 o

th
er

 p
os

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 3

7-
1/

2 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k

**
Sa

la
ry

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
pe

r E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t A
gr

ee
m

en
t

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

AL
AM

ED
A

PA
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 F

Y 
20

19
-2

02
0 

  e
ff.

 1
1/

24
/2

01
9 

  (
ba

se
d 

on
 3

.2
%

 C
O

LA
)

M
O

N
TH

LY
 S

AL
AR

Y 

Page 78

Page 78 of 83



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Resolution No. ____ 
 

ADOPT THE REVISED PAY SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
 
  

 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda conducts periodic 
compensation studies to ensure a competitive compensation (salary and benefits) 
package; and 

 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda conducted a 2019 
compensation study of exempt positions which resulted in recommended revisions to 
wage ranges assigned to positions; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that effective November 24, 2019, the 
Housing Authority will adopt the revised Pay Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
 
 
   
ATTEST:   
 
 
   
     
Vanessa M. Cooper  Arthur Kurrasch, Chair 
Executive Director and Secretary  Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:    

Page 79

Page 79 of 83



 

                                                                                                           

To:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:   Janet Basta, Director of Human Resources and Operations 
 
Date:   November 20, 2019 
 
Re:  Accept the Resolution to Amend the Schedule of Authorized 

Positions 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to provide for revisions to the Schedule of Authorized 
Positions incorporating an additional Housing Specialist II in the Housing Programs 
Department and the elimination of a Resident Manager in the Property Operations 
Department. 
 
DISCUSSION 
  
As addressed at the October 2019 Board of Commissioners meeting, AHA management 
is issuing an RFP for procurement of a third-party vendor to provide property 
management services for AHA-owned properties. AHA has not been successful in 
recruiting a Resident Manager for Parrott Village and Parrott Gardens, and intends to 
outsource management services for this property when a vendor is selected.  As a result, 
the position no longer needs to be hired as an AHA employee, and management is 
proposing that it be removed from the Schedule of Authorized Positions. 
 
Additionally, there has been a long-term vacancy in the Housing Programs Department 
due to an extended leave of absence. Temporary staff, hired through employment 
agencies, have been utilized to perform the caseload work that needed to be done. 
However, due to a shortage of qualified candidates who bring in the skills required to do 
the work without needing extensive training, along with a restricted pool of candidates 
AHA can consider due to CalPERS membership requirements and further restrictions on 
the length of time temporary staff can work for AHA, significant administrative time has 
been spent keeping this position staffed. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the current 
vacancy, and the challenges of keeping staffing at an adequate level to maintain 
production and quality standards, management is proposing adding a position to the 
Schedule of Authorized positions, which would allow recruitment of a full-time Housing 
Specialist II. This will allow for recruitment of skilled candidates interested in a regular, 
rather than temporary, position. Management intends to monitor the staffing level, and as 
attrition or opportunity for lateral transfer occurs, manage the staffing in the department 

Page 80

Page 80 of 83



Page 81

Page 81 of 83



DRAFT 11/20/19

2019-2020 approved Proposed change Year on Year
Department/Position Title  FTE 2020 Revised 2020  Difference
Administration Department

Executive Director 1.00 1.00
Deputy Executive Director                                                 1.00 1.00
Director of HR and Operations 1.00 1.00
Executive Assistant 1.00 1.00
Risk Manager                                                                    (See Note D) 0.00 1.00 1.00
Communications Manager                                                   (See Note D) 0.00 1.00 1.00
Senior Management Analyst 1.00 1.00
Management Analyst 3.00 3.00
Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 9.00 11.00 2.00
Finance Department

Director of Finance 1.00 1.00
Controller 1.00 1.00
Accounting Officer                                                              (See Note C) 1.00 1.00
Accounting Specialist                                                          2.00 2.00

Sub-total 5.00 5.00 0.00
Housing Programs Department

Director of Housing Programs 1.00 1.00
Housing Programs Supervisor 2.00 2.00
Housing Specialist III 1.00 1.00
Housing Specialist I & II                                                      (See Note B) 6.00 7.00
Housing Assistant 2.00 2.00

Sub-total 12.00 13.00 1.00
Property Operations Department

Director of Property Operations                                           1.00 1.00
Property Management Supervisor                                       1.00 1.00
Project Manager 1.00 1.00
Housing Specialist I/II                                                         (See Note B)                                                      2.00 2.00
Maintenance Supervisor                                       1.00 1.00
Maintenance Technician I & II                                             (See Note B) 6.00 6.00
Maintenance Specialist                               1.00 1.00
Resident Manager I and II                                                 (See Notes A and  B) 4.25 3.25
Assistant Resident Manager                                               (See Note A) 0.25 0.25

Sub-total 17.50 16.50 -1.00
 Housing and Community Development Department

Director of Housing and Community Development 1.00 1.00
Senior Project Manager 1.00 1.00
Project Manager 1.00 1.00
Asset Manager                                                               1.00 1.00
Management Analyst                                                                                           2.00 2.00
Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 7.00 7.00 0.00

Director of Rent Stabilization 1.00 1.00
Management Analyst 1.00 1.00
Rental Stabilization Program Specialist 3.00 3.00
Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 6.00 6.00 0.00

Total 56.50 58.50 2.00

Note A: Resident employees are contracted employees and are required to reside on-site at assigned Housing Authority 
complexes. Each Resident employee has an individual at will  employment contract. 
Note B: Positions at the  I and II levels are combined as a total count to allow for flexibility in staffing. 

Note C: Position may be renamed or filled at a lower level
Note D: Communications Manager and Risk Manager titles may be modified prior to recruiting; positions were approved in 
September 2019

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Schedule of Authorized Positions

November 20, 2019

Rental Stabilization Department                                  

Page 82

Page 82 of 83



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Resolution No. ____ 
 

ADOPT THE REVISED SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS 
 
  

 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda has identified a need 
to add a Housing Specialist II position in the Housing Programs Department, and 
eliminate a Resident Manager position in the Property Operations Department;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that effective November 20, 2019, the 
Housing Authority will adopt the revised Schedule of Authorized positions dated 
November 20, 2019 and be authorized to hire staff to fill any vacancies created by these 
changes. 
 
 
 
   
ATTEST:   
   
 
 
 
    
Vanessa M. Cooper  Arthur Kurrasch, Chair 
Executive Director and Secretary  Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
Adopted:    

Page 83

Page 83 of 83


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	8-E - Attachment - CIP Update - Nov 2019.pdf
	Sheet1 (2)

	9-D -attachment 1 - Schedule of Authorized Positions 11.20.2019 FY 2019-2020.pdf
	Budgeted Positions - 2019

	9-D -attachment 1 - Schedule of Authorized Positions 11.20.2019 FY 2019-2020.pdf
	Budgeted Positions - 2019

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



